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NOTICE 
 (PURSUANT TO SECTION 101 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013)  

NOTICE is hereby given that the Twenty-Eight (28th) Annual General Meeting of the members Orient Tradelink 
Limited will be held on Friday, 30th September, 2022 at 04:00 p.m. through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other 
Audio-Visual means (“OAVM”) to transact the following business:  

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 

ITEM NO. 1- To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial 
year ended March 31st, 2022 together with the Report of the Auditors thereon. 
 
ITEM NO.2- To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Aushim Khetarpal, who retires by rotation and being eligible, 
offers himself for re-appointment.  
 
ITEM NO. 3- TO APPOINT STATUTORY AUDITOR OF THE COMPANY 
 
To consider appointment of M/s. Scan and Company, Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditor of the Company 
and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139, 142  of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, (including any statutory 
modification(s),clarifications, exemptions or re-enactments thereof for the time being in force), M/s. Scan and 
Company, Chartered Accountants, (FRN: 113954W), be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the 
Company to hold office for a period of Five (5) consecutive years, from the conclusion of Twenty Eight (28th) 
Annual General Meeting till the Conclusion of the Thirty Three (33th) Annual General Meeting of the Company, 
at such remuneration plus applicable taxes, and out of pocket expenses, as may be determined and recommended 
by the Audit Committee in consultation with the Auditors and duly approved by the Board of Directors of the 
Company. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its Committee thereof), be 
and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things necessary e-Forms with the concerned Register of 
Companies, desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 
 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 
ITEM NO. 4- TO APPOINT STATUTORY AUDITORS TO FILL THE CASUAL VACANCY 
 
To consider appointment of M/s. Scan and Company, Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditor of the Company 
fix their remuneration and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), M/s. Scan and Company, Chartered Accountants, (FRN: 
113954W) be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company, to fill the casual vacancy caused 
by the resignation of M/s Satish Kumar Gaddh, Chartered Accountants (FRN:009641) 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT M/s. Scan and Company, be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of 
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the Company to hold the office from 13th August, 2022 until the conclusion of 28th Annual General Meeting, at 
such remuneration plus applicable taxes, and out of pocket expenses, as may be determined and recommended by 
the Audit Committee in consultation with the Auditors and duly approved by the Board of Directors of the 
Company.” 
 
ITEM NO. 5- APPOINTMENT OF MS. RACHNA PANWAR (DIN: 09492441) AS NON-EXECUTIVE 
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), if any, the following resolution as an 
Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions if any, of 
Companies Act, 2013 and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof and rules made thereunder, (for 
the time being in force), in accordance with the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, 
Ms. Rachna Narula (DIN: 09492441) who was appointed as an Additional Director in the category of Non-
Executive Director w.e.f. February 15, 2022, and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General and who 
is eligible for appointment and has consented to act as a Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as 
a Non-executive Director of the Company liable to retire by rotation.” 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby jointly or severally 
authorized to do all such acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution.” 
 
ITEM NO. 6- TO APPROVE THE PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION TO MR. SUBRAMANIAM 
SANKARAN, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) OF THE COMPANY: 
 
To Consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), if any, the following resolution as Special 
Resolution:  
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188, Section197 read with Schedule V and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or reenactment(s) 
thereof, for the time being in force), approval of the members be and is hereby accorded to payment of 
remuneration of INR 44,00,000/- per annum effective from August 13th, 2022 to Mr. Subramaniam Sankaran, 
Chief Executive Officer (CEO), asset out in the statement annexed to the Notice convening this Meeting with the 
liberty to the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” which term shall be deemed to include any 
Committee of the Board constituted to exercise its powers, including the powers conferred by this resolution) to 
alter and vary the said terms and conditions of appointment and / or remuneration, or any statutory modification(s) 
or re-enactment thereof. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and are hereby jointly or severally 
authorized to do all such acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution.” 
 
ITEM NO. 7- TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE THE FUND RAISING THROUGH PREFERENTIAL 
ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE WARRANTS INTO EQUITY SHARES: 
 
To Consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), if any, the following resolution as Special 
Resolution:  
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 23, 42, 62 and other applicable provisions, if any, of 
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 and the 
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 and such others rules and regulations made there under 
(including any amendments, statutory modification(s) and/or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) (the 
“Act”), the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and any other rules, 
regulations, guidelines, notifications, circulars and clarifications issued by the Government of India, Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs, Reserve Bank of India, Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), including the SEBI 
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(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time (“SEBI 
Listing Regulations”), SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)Regulations, 2018 as amended or re- 
enacted from time to time (“SEBI (ICDR) Regulations”) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial 
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (“SEBI Takeover Regulations”) and subject to necessary 
approvals, permissions, sanctions and consents, if any and as may be required from the any other relevant 
governmental authorities including from BSE Limited (“Stock Exchange”) and subject to such other approvals, 
permissions, sanctions and consents as may be necessary under all other statutes, rules, regulations, guidelines, 
notifications, circulars and clarifications as may be applicable and on such terms and conditions (including any 
alterations, modifications, corrections, changes and variations, if any, that may be stipulated while granting such 
approvals, permissions, sanctions and consents as the case may be required) by any other regulatory authorities 
which may be agreed to and/or accepted by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as 
“Board” which term shall be deemed to include any duly constituted / to be constituted Committee of Directors 
thereof to exercise its powers including powers conferred under this resolution) and subject to any other alterations, 
modifications, conditions, corrections, changes and variations that may be decided by the Board in its absolute 
discretion, the consent of the Shareholders of the Company be and is hereby accorded, to create, offer, issue and 
allot at an appropriate time, in one or more tranches in aggregate and up to 16,00,000 (Sixteen Lakh) Convertible 
equity warrants (“ Warrants”) with each warrant convertible into 1 (one) fully paid up equity share of the company 
of Face Value of INR 10/- (Indian Rupee Ten Only) each at a price of INR 11/- (Indian Rupees Eleven Only) 
including premium of INR 1/- (Indian Rupees One Only) each determined as per the provisions of Regulation 164 
of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 to the persons mentioned below falling under the non-promoter category, in 
such manner and on such terms and conditions as may be determined by the board in accordance with Chapter V 
of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 or any other provisions of the law as may be prevailing as on date: 

The details of the proposed allottees: 

 

S.No. Name of Proposed 
Allottees 

Category No. of   Warrants 
To Be Issued 

Amount (Rs.) 

1. Sanjay Sinha                       Non- Promoter 5,00,000 55,00,000 
2. Chattar Singh        Non-Promoter 4,00,000 44,00,000 
3. Mahesh Kumar Verma   Non-Promoter 3,00,000 33,00,000 
4. Jasvinder Singh                   Non-Promoter 2,00,000 22,00,000 
5. Rama Luthra               Non-Promoter 1,00,000 11,00,000 
6. Ramudagar Kamat Non-Promoter    1,00,000 11,00,000 

 Total 16,00,000 1,76,00,000 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the “Relevant Date” in accordance with SEBI (ICDR) Regulations would be 
Wednesday, August 31, 2022, being the date, which is 30 days prior to the date of Annual General Meeting i.e. 
Friday, September 30, 2022. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT without prejudice to the generality of the above, the issue of Equity Warrants 
shall be subject to following terms: 

a) The proposed Equity Warrants shall be issued and allotted by the Company to Proposed Allottee within a 
period of Fifteen (15) days from the date of passing of resolution at AGM. Provided that where the issue 
and allotment of the proposed Equity Warrants is pending on account of pendency of any approval for 
such issue and allotment by any regulatory authority or the Central Government, the issue and allotment 
shall be completed within a period of Fifteen (15) days from the date receipt of last of such approvals; 

 
b) Each Equity Warrant is convertible into One (1) Equity Share and the conversion can be exercised by 

warrant holder(s) at any time during the period of Eighteen (18) months from the date of allotment of 
Equity Warrants, in one or more tranches, as the case may be and on such other terms and conditions as 
applicable; 
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c) The Equity Warrants proposed to be issued shall be subject to appropriate adjustment, if during the interim 
period , the Company makes any issue of equity shares by way of capitalization of profits or reserves, 
upon demerger / realignment, rights issue or undertakes consolidation/sub-division/re-classification of 
equity shares or such other similar event so or circumstances requiring adjustments as permitted under 
SEBI(ICDR)Regulations and all other applicable regulations from time to time; 

 
d) The Equity Warrant subscription price equivalent to 25% of the issue price will be payable at the time of 

subscription of Equity Warrants, as prescribed by the SEBI(ICDR)Regulations, which would be adjusted 
by the Company and appropriated against the issue price of the Equity Shares. Equity Warrants exercise 
price equivalent to the 75% of the issue price of the equity shares shall be payable by the warrant 
holder(s)at the time of exercising conversion of Equity Warrants; 

 
e) The warrant holder(s) shall be entitled to exercise the option of exercising any or all of the Equity Warrants 

in one or more tranches by way of a written notice which shall be given to the Company, specifying the 
number of Equity Warrants proposed to exercise along with the aggregate amount payable thereon, prior 
to or at the time of conversion. The Company shall accordingly, without any further approval from the 
members of the Company, issue and allot the corresponding number of Equity Shares and perform such 
actions as required to credit the Equity Shares to the depository account and entering the name of allottee 
in the records of the Company as the registered owner of such Equity Shares; 

 
f) The Equity Shares to be so allotted on exercise of Equity Warrants shall be in dematerialized form and 

shall be subject to the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and 
shall rank pari-passu in all respects including dividend, with the existing equity shares of the Company; 

 
g) In the event the warrant holder(s) does not exercise the Equity Warrants within Eighteen (18) months 

from the date of allotment of the Equity Warrants, then such Equity Warrants shall lapse and the amount 
paid shall stand forfeited by the Company; 

 
h)  The Equity Warrants issued and allotted to promoter group will be transferable within the Promoter Group 

subject to compliance of applicable provisions and subject to such other approvals as may be necessary 
from time to time; 

 
i) The Equity Shares arising from the exercise of the Equity Warrants will be listed on Stock Exchanges 

where the equity shares of the Company are listed, subject to the receipt of necessary regulatory 
permissions and approvals as the case may be and shall inter- alia be governed by the regulations and 
guidelines issued by SEBI or any other statutory authority; 

 
j) The Equity Warrants and the Equity Shares being allotted pursuant to exercise of such Equity Warrants 

shall be subject to a lock-in for such period as specified under applicable provisions of SEBI (ICDR) 
Regulations. 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to issue and allot such number of Equity 
Shares of the Company as may be required to be issued and allotted upon exercise of the option by the warrant 
holder(s). 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to the above, the Board be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may in its absolute discretion deemed necessary, 
desirable and expedient for such purpose, including without limitation, issuing clarification on the offer, issue and 
allotment of the equity Warrants convertible into Equity Shares, and listing of equity shares at the Stock 
Exchanges as per the terms and conditions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations and other applicable Guidelines, Rules 
and Regulations, to execute the necessary documents and enter into contracts, arrangements, agreements, 
documents (including appointment of agencies, intermediaries and advisor for the Preferential Issue), resolving 
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all questions and doubt that may arise with respect to the offer, issued and allotment of equity warrants convertible 
into Equity Shares, and to authorize all such person as may be deemed necessary, in connection therewith and 
incidental thereto as the Board in its absolute discretion shall deem fit without being required to seek any fresh 
approval of the Shareholders of the Company and that the decision of the Board shall be final and conclusive. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the power herein 
conferred, to Mr. Aushim Khetarpal, Managing Director of the Company and/or Company Secretary of the 
Company including making necessary filings with the Stock Exchanges and Regulatory Authorities and execution 
of any documents on behalf of the Company and to represent the Company before any governmental authorities 
and to appoint Consultants, Professional Advisors and Legal Advisors to give effect to the aforesaid resolution. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all actions taken by the Board in connection with any matter(s) referred to or 
contemplated in any of the foregoing resolution be and are hereby approved, ratified and confirmed in all respect.  

ITEM NO. 8: TO APPROVE THE ISSUE AND ALLOTMENT OF EQUITY SHARES IN PURSUANT 
TO CONVERSION OF LOAN 
 
To Consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), if any, the following resolution as 
Special Resolution:  
  
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 42, Section 62, and all other applicable provisions, 
if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), read with the relevant Rules made thereunder (including any 
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and in accordance with the provisions 
of the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company and in accordance with the provisions on 
preferential issue as contained in Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018, (“SEBI ICDR Regulations”), the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), and other 
applicable regulations of Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), if any, as may be applicable, other 
applicable rules, notifications, guidelines, regulations issued by various authorities including but not limited to 
Government of India, SEBI, Reserve Bank of India (RBI), BSE Limited and any other competent authorities and 
subject to the approval(s), consent(s), permission(s) and/ or sanction(s), if any, of Reserve Bank of India or of any 
statutory/regulatory authorities, Stock Exchange(s), Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”), institutions 
or bodies, as may be required and subject to such terms and condition(s), alteration(s), correction(s), change(s) 
and/or modification(s) as may be prescribed by any of them while granting such consent(s), permission(s) or 
approval(s), and which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the 
“Board” which terms shall be deemed to include any Committee which the Board may have constituted or 
hereinafter constitute to exercise its power including the powers conferred by this Resolution), and subject to any 
other alterations, modifications, conditions, corrections, changes and variations that may be decided by the Board 
in its absolute discretion, consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board to 
create, offer, issue and allot on preferential basis, in one or more tranches, to below mentioned person up to 
maximum of 6,43,000 (Six Lakh Forty Three Thousand) Equity Shares of Face value of INR10/- (Indian Rupees 
Ten Only) each, fully paid up, at an Issue price of INR  11/- (Indian Rupees Ten only) including premium of INR 
1/- (Indian Rupees One Only) per Equity Share, which is in compliance with the provision of Chapter V of SEBI 
(ICDR) Regulations, aggregating upto INR 70,73,000/- (Indian Rupees Seventy Lakhs Seventy Three Thousand 
Only) upon the conversion of unsecured loan outstanding as on date i.e. 13th August, 2022. 
 

S.No. Name of Proposed 
Allottees 

Category No. of   Equity 
shares to Be Issued 

Amount (Rs.) 

1. Aushim Khetarpal  Promoter 4,43,000 48,73,000 
2. Asha Khetarpal  Promoter 1,00,000 11,00,000 
3. Sumeet Sharma proprietor of 

M/s.Sumeet Enterprises 
(Proprietorship concern) 

Non Promoter 1,00,000 11,00,000 

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the "Relevant Date" as per SEBI ICDR Regulations for the purpose of 
determining the minimum issue price for the issue of equity shares arising on conversion of unsecured loan is 
Wednesday, August 31, 2022, the date 30 days prior to the date of passing of special resolution by the shareholders 
at proposed AGM i.e. September 30, 2022. 

5



 
1. The said Equity Shares shall be issued and allotted by the Company to Promoter and Non-promoter within a 

period of 15 (Fifteen) days from the date of passing of this resolution provided that where the allotment of the 
said Equity Shares is pending on account of pendency of any approval for such allotment by any regulatory 
authority or the Central Government, the allotment shall be completed within a period of 15 (Fifteen) days 
from the date of such approval. 

 
2. The Equity Shares to be so allotted shall be in dematerialized form and shall be subject to the provisions of 

the Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company, and shall rank pari-passu in all 
respects including dividend, with the existing Equity Shares of the Company. 

 
3. In accordance with the provisions of Chapter-V of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018, the pre-preferential 

allotment shareholding (if any) of the Proposed Allottees shall be locked-in from the relevant date up to a 
period of 90 trading days from the date of trading approval. 

 
4. The Equity Shares to be allotted shall be subject to a lock - in for such period as specified under Chapter V of 

SEBI ICDR Regulations relating to Preferential Issues. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT all or any of the powers conferred on the Company and the Board of Directors 
vide this Resolution may be exercised by the Board or any Committee of the Board (with power to delegate to any 
Officer of the Company), as the Board or any Committee, for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution, may 
in its absolute discretion deem necessary, desirable or expedient, including the Listing Application to the Stock 
Exchange(s), making application to Reserve Bank of India seeking prior approval for the change in shareholding, 
if any,  filing of requisite forms with Registrar of Companies and to resolve and settle any questions and difficulties 
that may arise in the proposed offer, issue and allotment of aforesaid securities, utilization of issue proceeds, 
signing of all deeds and documents as may be required and to do all acts, deeds and things in connection therewith 
and incidental thereto without being required to seek any further consent or approval of the Members of the 
Company or otherwise to the end and intent that they shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly 
by the authority of this Resolution. 
 
ITEM NO. 9: TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE THE ISSUANCE OF SWEAT EQUITY SHARES TO 
DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY 
 
To Consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), if any, the following resolution as Special 
Resolution:  
 
RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 54 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Shares 
Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, (including any statutory modifications or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force)(Listing Regulations) and other applicable laws and subject to 
necessary approvals from the BSE Limited and such other approvals as may be necessary and in accordance with 
the recommendations of the Board, consent of the members be and is hereby accorded to Issue of 4,00,000 (Four 
Lakh) sweat equity share, at a price of INR 11/- (Indian Rupees Eleven only) (Face value of INR 10/- per share 
including premium of INR 1/-)per sweat equity share aggregating to INR 44,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Forty Four 
Lakh only) to Mr. Subramaniam Sankaran, CEO of the Company. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Sweat equity shares issued shall be locked in for a period of Six Months 
from the date of trading approval granted from Stock Exchange. The price of the share shall be calculated as per 
the guidelines issued by the SEBI, the Valuation Report has been obtained by a merchant banker in regard to 
valuation of the intellectual property or of the know-how provided or other value addition by Mr. Subramaniam 
Sankaran, CEO of the Company to whom sweat equity capital is to be issued. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to the provisions of Section 54 of the Companies Act, 2013 and also in 
accordance with the SEBI (Shares Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021, and also other 
requisite approvals of appropriate agencies, banks & financial institutions if any 4,00,000 number of equity of 
shares be and are hereby issued for consideration other than cash for providing know-how or making available 
rights in the nature of intellectual rights or value additions, by whatever name called) at INR 11 per share to Mr. 
Subramaniam Sankaran,  CEO of the Company, as per the detailed statement and Valuation Report , which is also 
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duly initialed by the Chairman for identification. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors or Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby 
severally authorized to intimate Stock exchanges post Member’s approval within the permitted time and execute 
all such forms, documents, instruments, papers and writings etc., on behalf of the Company as may be required 
from time to time, to do and to perform all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary to give effect to this 
resolution and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt, that may arise in giving effect to aforementioned 
resolution. 
 
ITEM NO. 10: TO ADOPTION OF NEW SET OF ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION AS PER THE 
PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following Resolution as a Special 
Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 5, 14 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act 2013, read with Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014, including any statutory modification or 
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force (’the Act’) and subject to the necessary approval(s) required under 
all other applicable laws and regulations if any, consent of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded 
to alter the existing Articles of Association of the Company, by replacing, it with the new set of Articles of 
Association in accordance with Table ‘F’ of Schedule I of the Act and that the new set of Articles of Association 
be and is hereby approved and adopted as the Articles of Association of the Company in exclusion and in 
substitution of the existing Articles of Association of the Company. 
 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Any Director and/or Company Secretary be and are hereby jointly and/or 
severally authorized to do and perform all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be required or deemed 
necessary or incidental thereto including signing and filing all the e-forms and other documents with the statutory 
authorities, and to execute all such deeds, documents, agreements and writings as may be necessary for and on 
behalf of the Company for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution and for matters connected therewith or 
incidental thereto.” 
 
ITEM NO. 11: TO ADOPTION OF NEW SET OF MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION AS PER THE 
PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following Resolution as a Special 
Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 4, 13 and 15 and any other applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the consent of the members of the 
company be and is hereby accorded to adopt the new set of Memorandum of Association. 
 
FURTHER RESOLVED THAT any Director and/or Company Secretary of the Company be and is hereby 
authorized to do all such acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this 
resolution including filing of necessary form(s) with Registrar of Company (RoC).” 
 
ITEM NO. 12: INCREASE IN AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY: 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 13, 61 & 64 or all other applicable provisions, read 
with applicable Rules made there under (including amendments or re- enactment thereof), consent of shareholders 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to alter and increase the Authorized Share Capital of the Company 
from existing INR 12,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Twelve Crore) divided into 1,20,00,000 (One Crore Twenty 
Lakh) Equity Shares of INR 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each to INR 14,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Fourteen Crore 
Only) divided into 1,40,00,000 (One Crore Forty Lakh) Equity Shares of INR 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each by 
inserting 20,00,000 (Twenty Lakh) Equity Shares. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the existing Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company be 
and is hereby substituted by following new Clause: 

“V. The Authorized Share capital of the Company is INR 14,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Fourteen Crore Only)  
divided into 1,40,00,000 (One Crore Forty Lakh) Equity Shares of INR 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each.” 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Any Director and/or Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby 
jointly or severally authorized to sign, execute and file necessary application, forms, deeds, documents and 
writings as may be necessary for and on behalf of the Company and to settle and finalize all issues that may arise 
in this regard and to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be deemed necessary, proper, expedient or 
incidental for giving effect to this resolution and to delegate all or any of the powers conferred herein as they may 
deem fit.” 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 06.09.2022 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
Orient Tradelink Limited 

 
Sd/- 

Akash Toshniwal 
Company Secretary  
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NOTES:-  

1. In view of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) has vide its General 
Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 in relation to clarification on holding of Annual General 
Meeting (‘AGM’) through video conferencing (‘VC’) or other audio visual means (‘OAVM’) read with 
General Circulars Nos. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 22/2020 dated June 
15, 2020, 33/2020 dated September 28, 2020, 39/2020 dated December 31, 2020, 10/2021 dated June 
23, 2021, 19/2021 dated December 8, 2021 and Circular No. 2/2022 dated May 5, 2022 in relation to 
‘Clarification on passing of ordinary and special resolutions by companies under the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules made thereunder on account of the threat posed by COVID-19’ and General Circular 
No.02/2021 dated January 13, 2021 (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’) and the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) vide its circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 
May 12, 2020 in relation to ‘Additional relaxation in relation to compliance with certain provisions of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015-COVID-19 pandemic’ and 
Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/ CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021 and 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022 (collectively referred to as ‘SEBI 
Circulars’) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’/‘the Meeting’) through VC/ 
OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In compliance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’), the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing Regulations’) and MCA Circulars, the 28th AGM of 
the Company is being held through VC/OAVM on Friday, September 30, 2022 at 4:00 p.m. IST. The 
deemed venue for the AGM will be the Registered Office of the Company- 801-A, 8th Floor, Mahalay 
Building, Behind Fairdeal House, Off: C. G. Road, Swastik Cross Roads, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad, 
Gujarat-380009. 

 
2. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act in respect of the business under Item 

Nos. 3 to 9 set out above and the relevant details of the Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment 
at this AGM as required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial 
Standard on General Meetings issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (‘Secretarial 
Standard’) are annexed hereto. Requisite declarations have been received from the Directors seeking 
appointment/ re-appointment. 

  
3. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled 

time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The 
facility of participation at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1000 members 
on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or 
more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the 
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM without restriction on 
account of first come first served basis. 
 

4. PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT, A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND 
AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE 
ON HIS/HER BEHALF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. 
SINCE THIS AGM IS BEING HELD PURSUANT TO THE MCA CIRCULARS THROUGH 
VC/OAVM, THE REQUIREMENT OF PHYSICAL ATTENDANCE OF MEMBERS HAS 
BEEN DISPENSED WITH. ACCORDINGLY, IN TERMS OF THE MCA CIRCULARS AND 
THE SEBI CIRCULARS, THE FACILITY FOR APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES BY THE 
MEMBERS WILL NOT BE AVAILABLE FOR THIS AGM AND HENCE THE PROXY 
FORM, ATTENDANCE SLIP AND ROUTE MAP OF AGM ARE NOT ANNEXED TO THIS 
NOTICE. 

 
5. Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the 

quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 
 

6. Pursuant to MCA Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and 
cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and 
Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the members such as the President of India 
or the Governor of a State or body corporate can attend the AGM through VC/OAVM and cast their 
votes through e-voting. 
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7. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the 
Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.orienttradelink.in. 
The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at 
www.bseindia.com.  The AGM Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for 
providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM/EGM) i.e. 
www.evotingindia.com. 

 
8. SEBI HAS MANDATED SUBMISSION OF PAN BY EVERY PARTICIPANT IN THE 

SECURITIES MARKET. MEMBERS HOLDING SHARES IN ELECTRONIC FORM ARE, 
THEREFORE, REQUESTED TO SUBMIT THEIR PAN DETAILS TO THEIR DEPOSITORY 
PARTICIPANTS. MEMBERS HOLDING SHARES IN PHYSICAL FORM ARE REQUESTED TO 
SUBMIT THEIR PAN DETAILS TO THE COMPANY’S RTA. 

 
9. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, Register of Contracts 

or Arrangements in which Directors are interested and other documents referred to in the Notice and 
explanatory statement, including certificate from the Auditors of the Company under Regulation 13 of 
the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 will be available electronically for 
inspection via a secured platform without any fee by the members during the AGM. All documents 
referred to in the Notice will also be available for electronic inspection by the Members from the date 
of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM. Members seeking to inspect such documents can 
send an email to orient.tradelink@gmail.com.  

 
10. Members are requested to notify the Company of any change in address or demise of any member as 

soon as possible. Members are also advised not to leave their demat account(s) dormant for long. 
Periodic statement of holdings should be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant and 
holdings should be verified. 

 
11. As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act and SEBI Circular, the facility for making nomination is 

available for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet registered 
their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-13. If a Member desires 
to opt out or cancel the earlier nomination and record a fresh nomination, he/she may submit the same 
in SH-14 as the case may be. 

 
12. Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one folio are 

requested to send to the Company’s RTA, the details of such folios together with the share certificates 
along with the requisite KYC documents for consolidating their holdings in one folio. Requests for 
consolidation of share certificates shall be processed in dematerialized form. 

 
13. Non-Resident Indian members are requested to inform RTA / respective DPs, immediately of:  

 
a) Change in their residential status on return to India for permanent settlement.  

 
b) Particulars of their bank account maintained in India with complete name, branch, account type, 

account number and address of the bank with pin code number, if not furnished earlier. 
 

14. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and MCA Circulars 
dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-
voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the 
Company has entered into an agreement with Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) for 
facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized e-Voting’s agency. The facility of casting 
votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date of the AGM will 
be provided by CDSL. 
 

15. The Members can opt for only one mode of remote e-voting i.e. either prior to the AGM or during the 
AGM. The Members present at the Meeting through VC/OAVM who have not already cast their vote 
by remote e-voting prior to the Meeting shall be able to exercise their right to cast their vote by remote 
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e-voting during the Meeting. The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the 
AGM are eligible to attend the Meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again. 

 
16. A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners 

maintained by the depositories as on Friday, September 23, 2022 (‘cut-off date’) shall be entitled to vote 
in respect of the shares held, by availing the facility of remote e-voting prior to the AGM or remote e-
voting during the AGM. 

 

17. The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Mr. Vivek Rawal, Managing Partner of M/s 
Vikas Verma & Associates, New Delhi as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting during the AGM and 
remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 
 

18. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first download the votes 
cast at the AGM and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and shall within 48 hours 
of conclusion of the AGM shall submit a consolidated Scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in favor 
of or against, if any, to the Chairman or any other person authorized by the Chairman, who shall 
countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith. 

 
19. The results along with Scrutinizer's Report, shall be displayed at the Registered Office and Corporate 

office of the Company and placed on the Company's website at http://www.orienttradelink.in  and the 
website of CDSL immediately after the result is declared. The results shall be simultaneously 
communicated to the Stock Exchanges where the securities of the Company are listed. The resolutions 
will be deemed to be passed on the date of AGM subject to receipt of the requisite number of votes in 
favour of the resolutions. 

 
20. Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice. 

 
THE INTRUCTIONS OF SHAREHOLDERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING 
AGM AND JOINING MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 
 
 

(i) The voting period begins on Tuesday, September 27, 2022 9.00 A.M. IST and ends on Thursday, 
September 29, 2022 5.00 P.M. IST. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares 
either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of Friday, 
September 23, 2022 cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for 
voting thereafter.    

 
(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the 

meeting venue. 
 

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under 
Regulation 44 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its 
shareholders, in respect of all shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the 
participation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level. 

 
Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (ESPs) providing e-voting facility to listed 
entities in India. This necessitates registration on various ESPs and maintenance of multiple user IDs 
and passwords by the shareholders. 

 
In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, pursuant to a public consultation, it has been 
decided to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single login credential, 
through their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/ Depository Participants. Demat account 
holders would be able to cast their vote without having to register again with the ESPs, thereby, not 
only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-
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voting process.  
 
(iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on e-

Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 
are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 
Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 
accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular, Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meetings for 
Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below: 
 

Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
Demat mode 
with CDSL 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing 
user id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without 
any further authentication. The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or visit www.cdslindia.com and click on 
Login icon and select New System Myeasi. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for 
eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by 
company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of 
the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period 
or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links 
provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers i.e. 
CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service 
providers’ website directly. 

3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account 
Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home 
page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & 
Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be 
able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly 
access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

 
Individual 
Shareholders 
holding 
securities in 
demat mode 
with NSDL 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services 
website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 
home page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 
“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section. A new screen will open. You will 
have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be 
able to see e-Voting services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services 
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider name and you will be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. 
 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS “Portal or click   at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  
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3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 
home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter 
your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), 
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will 
be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat mode) 
login through 
their 
Depository 
Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository 
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After Successful login, you will 
be able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting 
feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected 
to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

  
 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login 
through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL 
     

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 
022- 23058738 and 22-23058542-43. 
  

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30   

 
(v) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than individual 

shareholders holding in Demat form & physical shareholders. 
 

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 
 

2) Click on “Shareholders” module. 
 

3) Now enter your User ID  
 
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the 

Company. 
 

4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 
 

5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an 
earlier e-voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.  
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6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 

 For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than individual and 
Physical Form 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department 
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 
 
 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository 

Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or 
contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend 

Bank 
Details 

 OR Date of 
Birth 
(DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as 

recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login. 

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter 
the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned 

in instruction (v). 

 
(vi) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab. 

 

(vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. 
However, shareholders holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein 

they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that 
this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company 
on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It 
is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 
your password confidential. 

 
(viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the 

resolutions contained in this Notice. 
 

(ix) Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote. 

 
(x) On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option 

“YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent 
to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution. 

 
(xi) Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details. 

 
(xii) After selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box 

will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on 
“CANCEL” and accordingly modify your vote. 

 
(xiii) Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 
(xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting 

page. 
 

(xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image 
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 

 
(xvi) Facility for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians –Remote Voting 
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 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required 

to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” module. 

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 

 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and 

password. The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 

 The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on 
approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.  

 A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour 
of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify 
the same. 

 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority 
letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized 
to vote, to the Scrutinizer and to the Company at the email address orienttradelink@gmail.com, if they 
have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to 
verify the same. 
 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-
VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER: 
 

1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day of the AGM is same as the instructions 
mentioned above for Remote e-voting. 

 
2. The link for VC/OAVM to attend meeting will be available where the EVSN of Company will be 

displayed after successful login as per the instructions mentioned above for Remote e-voting. 
  

3. Shareholders who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the meeting. 
However, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 

 
4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience. 

 
5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 

disturbance during the meeting. 
 

6. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting 
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It 
is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid 
glitches. 

 
7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register 

themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 10 days prior to meeting 
mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company 
email id). The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their 
queries in advance 5 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio 
number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). These queries will be replied to by the company 
suitably by email.  

 
8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their 

views/ask questions during the meeting. 
 

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted 
their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, 
shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available during the AGM. 
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10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting available during the AGM and if the 
same shareholders have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the votes 
cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the meeting is 
available only to the shareholders attending the meeting. 

 
PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT 
REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

 
1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned 
copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id. 
 
2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP)  
 
3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective 
Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository. 

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you 
can write an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 and 022-23058542/43. 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, 
Sr. Manager, (CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, 
Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  on 022-23058542/43. 

 

16



 

 
 

 

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36(5) OF SEBI LISTING REGULATIONS: 

ITEM NO. 3: 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, recommended for the 
approval of the members, the appointment of M/s Scan and Company (Firm Registration No.: 113954W) as 
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of five years from the conclusion of this 28th AGM till the 
conclusion of the 33rd AGM of the Company, at a remuneration mutually decided by the Board of Directors and 
Auditor and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses to conduct the Audit for the financial year 2022-23 to 2026-
27. The remuneration for the subsequent year(s) of their term shall be determined based on the recommendation 
of the Audit Committee and as mutually agreed between the Board of Directors of the Company and the Statutory 
Auditors. 
 
M/s Scan and Company is a firm of Chartered Accountants in New Delhi, India. S&C provides services in the 
fields of audit and assurance, tax and regulatory, transaction advisory and consulting keeping in mind the 
regulatory and commercial environment within which the Firm’s clients operate. 
 
The Company has obtained a certificate from the auditors of the Company that they meet the criteria of 
independence, eligibility and qualification as prescribed in section 141 of the Act. As required under the SEBI 
Listing Regulations, M/s Scan and Company, has confirmed that they hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer 
Review Board of ICAI. 
 
None of the directors and key managerial personnel or their relatives are interested financially or otherwise in the 
resolution as set out in item no. 3 of this notice. 
 
The Board recommends the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for approval by the Members by way of 
an Ordinary Resolution. 

 
EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 
ITEM NO. 4:  

M/s. Satish Kumar Gaddh, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 009641) vide their letter dated August 13, 2022 have 
resigned from the position of Statutory Auditors of the Company, resulting into a casual vacancy in the office of 
Statutory Auditors of the Company as envisaged by Section 139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on August 13, 2022 as per the recommendation of the Audit Committee, 
and pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013, have appointed M/s. Scan and 
Company, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 113954W), to hold office as the Statutory Auditors of the Company till 
the Conclusion of the 28th AGM and to fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of M/s. Scan and 
Company, Chartered Accountants subject to the approval by the members in ensuing general Meeting of the 
Company. 
 
The Company has also received consent and eligibility certificate from M/s. Scan and Company, to act as Statutory 
Auditors of the Company along with a confirmation that, their appointment, if made, would be within the limits 
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No. 04 of 
the Notice for appointment. 
 
The Board recommends an Ordinary Resolution set out in the Notice for approval by the Members. 
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise in this resolution. 
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ITEM NO.5: 

Based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors appointed Ms. 
Rachna Panwar (DIN: 09492441) as an Additional Non-executive Director of the Company w.e.f. February 15, 
2022.  

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161(1) of the Act, Ms. Rachna Panwar shall hold office up to the date of this 
AGM and is eligible to be appointed as a Director. The Company has, in terms of Section 160(1) of the Act, 
received a notice in writing from a Member, proposing her candidature for the office of Director. Ms. Rachna 
Panwar, once appointed will be liable to retire by rotation.  

Ms. Rachna Panwar has given her declaration to the Board that she is eligible to be appointed as a Director in 
terms of Section 164 of the Act. She has also given her consent to act as a Director.   

The Board considers it desirable and in the interest of the Company to have Ms. Rachna Panwar on the Board of 
the Company and accordingly the Board recommends the appointment of Ms. Rachna Panwar as an Non-Executive 
Director as proposed in the resolution set out at Item No. 5 for approval by the Members.  

The Documents related to this item shall be open for inspection at the registered office of the Company during 
working hours. 

No Director, Key Managerial Personnel or their respective relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.  

ITEM NO. 6: 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 196 and 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Section 1, Part II of Schedule 
V of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or reenactment thereof for the time being 
in force), and applicable clauses of the Articles of Association of the Company, the above said remuneration 
requires approval of members of the Company by way of Special Resolution. 

Mr. Subramaniam Sankaran was appointed as Chief Executive Officer w.e.f. August 13th, 2022 by the Board of 
Directors of the Company to strengthen the Management. Mr. Subramaniam Sankaran has rich and versatile 
experience in the field of Education, which includes extensive experience in specialty. Keeping in view, the vast 
experience of Mr. Subramaniam Sankaran, the Board of Directors has recommended the payment of remuneration 
of INR 44,00,000/- per annum effective from the August 13th, 2022. The draft terms and conditions of appointment 
of Mr. Subramaniam Sankaran as CEO shall be open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company by 
any member during normal business hours (8.30 a.m. to 5.30 p.m.) on all working days until the date of the AGM. 

No other Director(s) or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is concerned or interested, 
financial or otherwise, in the Resolution set out at Item No. 6. Disclosure pursuant to regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is set out in the ‘Annexure A’ to the Explanatory 
Statement. 

ITEM NO. 7: 

The Company proposes to raise additional capital up to an aggregate sum of INR 1,76,00,000/- (Indian Rupees 
One Crore Seventy Six Lakh Only), of which such number of share warrants convertible into equity shares having 
face value of INR 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten Only) each of the Company (“Equity Shares”) Share, for cash at an 
issue price of INR 11/- (Indian Rupees Eleven Only) per share warrant convertible into Equity Share, is proposed 
to be issued by way of Convertible warrants through Preferential Issue. The proposed issue of capital is subject 
to the applicable regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India and any other government / 
regulatory approvals as may be required in this regard. Pursuant to Section 62 of the Companies Act and the 
listing requirements of the Stock Exchanges, whenever it is proposed to increase the subscribed capital of a 
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company by a further issue of shares, such shares need to be offered to the existing Members in the manner 
prescribed in the said section and the listing requirements unless the Members decide otherwise by way of a 
special resolution. 

In order to enable the Company to access the capital market through a preferential basis, the approval of the 
Members is hereby sought pursuant to the provisions of Section 62(1)(c) and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act as well as applicable rules notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and in terms of the 
provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended. 
 
The Board of Directors in their meeting held on September 06, 2022 subject to the necessary approvals, have 
decided to issue and allot up to 16,00,000 (Sixteen Lakh) convertible equity warrants (‘Warrants’), at a price of 
INR. 11/- (Indian Rupees Eleven only) per Warrant aggregating to INR 1,76,00,000/- (Indian Rupees One Crore 
Seventy-Six Lakh only), under Non- Promoter Category. 
 
The details of the issue and other particulars as required in terms of the Act and SEBl (ICDR) Regulations, 
2018 in relation to the aforesaid Special Resolution are given as under: 
 

1. Objects of the issue: 

The Company, with a view to capitalize on available growth opportunities, continues to evaluate avenues for 
organic and inorganic growth. The proceeds from the issue will be utilized as follows: 

a) Diversification and expansion of business in the various fields including information technologies and 
Paper Industries by way of acquiring any legal entities. 

b) To meet working capital requirements to acquiring the machineries and inventories for the purpose of new 
business. 

c) General corporate purposes. 
d) To support the future business plans of the Company and such other purpose as the Board may decide. 

2. Maximum number of specified securities to be issued: 

It is proposed to issue 16,00,000 (Sixteen Lakh) warrants which are convertible into equal number of equity 
shares of face value of INR 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten only) each of the Company. 

3. Basis on which the price has been arrived at: 

Since the shares of the Company are frequently traded, the issue price for the preferential allotment is determined 
as per the regulation 164 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. Accordingly, the minimum issue price has been 
calculated on the basis of trading at BSE. Each warrant is convertible into one equity share of Face value of INR 
10/- (Indian Rupee Ten only) each fully paid up in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI (ICDR) 
Regulations, 2018. 

In terms of the applicable provisions of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 the price at which warrants / equity 
shares shall be allotted shall not be less than higher of the following: 

a) the 90 trading days volume weighted average price of the related equity shares quoted on the 
recognized stock exchange preceding the relevant date; 

b) the 10 trading days volume weighted average price of the related equity shares quoted on the 
recognized stock exchange preceding the relevant date; 

Accordingly, as per the Regulation 164 of SEBI (ICDR), Regulations, 2015 minimum price per share calculated 
is Rs. 10.90 on preceding the relevant date and the price per warrant to be issued is fixed at INR 11/- (Indian 
Rupees Eleven only) which shall be higher than the price as computed under Regulation 164 of SEBI (ICDR) 
Regulations, 2018. 

Since the equity shares of the Company have been listed on the recognized Stock Exchanges for a period of more 
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than 90 trading days prior to the Relevant Date, it is not required to re-compute the price per share warrant to be 
issued and therefore, the Company is not required to submit the undertaking specified under the Regulations 163 
(1) (g) and 163 (1) (h) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. 

4. Terms of Issue of the Equity Shares, if any. 

The Warrants to be issued and allotted, which are convertible into equal number of Equity Shares in terms of 
this resolution shall rank pari-passu with existing equity shares of the Company in all respects. 

5. The class or classes of persons to whom the allotment is proposed to be made: 

The allotment is proposed to be made to individuals which does not form part of Promoter & Promoter group. 

6. Relevant Date: 
 
The “Relevant Date” for the offer, issue and allotment of the warrants by way of a preferential issue, as per the 
SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 for determination of minimum price is Wednesday, August 31, 2022 being the 
date thirty days prior to the date on which the meeting of shareholder’s resolution is passed. 
 

7. Intent of the Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel to subscribe the offer: 
 
Except Mahesh Kumar Verma Director of the Company, None of the Promoter, Directors or KMPs intends 
to subscribe to the equity warrant on Preferential Issue basis. 
 
8. The time frame within which the allotment shall be completed: 
 
The warrants convertible into equity shares shall be issued and allotted by the Company to the Proposed 
Allottees within a period of 15 (Fifteen) days from the date of receipt of Member’s approval, provided that, 
where the issue and allotment of the said equity shares is pending on account of pendency of any approval 
by any Regulatory Authority (including, but not limited to the BSE Limited and/or SEBI), MCA or the 
Government of India, the issue and allotment shall be completed within a period of 15 (Fifteen) days from 
the date of receipt of last of such approvals or such other time as may be prescribed or permitted by the SEBI, 
Stock Exchanges or other relevant authorities. 
 
9. Change in control, if any, in the Company that would occur consequent to the preferential offer: 

There shall be no change in the management or control of the Company pursuant to the issue of the warrants 

Convertible into Equity Shares. 

 
10. Number of persons to whom allotment on preferential basis have already been made during the year 

in terms of no. of securities as well as the price: 

No allotment made during the year. 
 
11. The shareholding pattern of the Company before the proposed issue and after the proposed 

preferential issue of equity shares and conversion of warrants into equity shares as follows: 
 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Category Pre Issue Proposed 
Issue 

Post Issue 

No. of 
Shares held 

%   of 
Shareholdi 
ng 

Warrants 
convertible 
into Equity 
Shares 

No. of 
Shares held 

% of 
Share holding 

A Promoters’ 
holding 

     

20



 

 
 

1 Indian:    - - 
 Individual 3,17,886 2.90 5,43,000 8,60,886 6.33 
 Bodies 

Corporate 
- - - - - 

 Sub-Total 3,17,886 2.90 5,43,000 8,60,886 6.33 

2 Foreign 
Promoters 

- - 
- 

- - 

 Sub-Total 
(A) 

3,17,886 2.90 5,43,000 8,60,886 6.33 

B Non- 
Promoters’ 

- - - - - 

 holding:      

1 Institutional 
Investors 

- - - - - 

2 Non- 
Institutions 

- - - - - 

 Private 
Corporate 
Bodies 

- - - - - 

 Directors and 
Relatives 

- - - - - 

 Indian 
Public 

89,93,485 82.02 21,00,000 1,10,93,485 81.52 

 Any 
Others 

     

 Bodies 
Corporate 

3,76,849 3.44 - 3,76,849 2.77 

 Non- 
Resident 
Indian 

17,293 0.16 - 17,293 0.13 

 HUF 2,13,636 1.95 - 2,13,636 1.57 

 Clearing 
Members 

10,35,785 9.45 - 10,35,785 7.61 

 Trust 10,066 0.08 - 10,066 0.07 

 Sub-Total 
(B) 

1,06,47,114 97.10 21,00,000 1,13,32,720 93.67 

 GRAND 
TOTAL 

1,09,65,000 100 26,43,000 1,36,08,000 100 

 
*The post issue shareholding pattern in the above table prepared on considering proposed allottees mentioned 
in Item No. 7, Item No. 8 and Item No. 9
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12. The names of the proposed allottees and the percentage of post preferential offer capital 
that may be held by them: 

 
SI. 
No 
. 

Name of Proposed Allottees 
(Non-Promoter Category) 

Pre 
issue 
holding 

% of 
shar 
es 

Number of 
warrants to 
be Allotted 

Post issue 
holding 

Post Issue 
Percentage 

1. Sanjay Sinha                       57,328 0.52 5,00,000 5,00,000 4.10 
2. Chattar Singh        - - 4,00,000 4,00,000 2.94 

3. Mahesh Kumar Verma          544 0.00 3,00,000 3,00,544 2.21 
4. Jasvinder Singh                      -   - 2,00,000 2,00,000 1.47 
5. Rama Luthra                            42,377   0.39 1,00,000 1,00,000 1.05 
6. Ramudagar Kamat                 - - 1,00,000 1,00,000 0.73 
  Total 1,00,249  0.91 16,00,000 17,00,249 12.49 

 
13. Report of Registered Valuer: 

No report of registered valuer is required for the offer, issue and allotment of the warrants convertible 
into Equity Shares under the provisions of second proviso to Rule 13(1) of the Companies (Share 
Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014, as amended. 
 
14. The justification for the allotment proposed to be made for consideration other than cash 

together with valuation report of the registered Valuer: Not applicable 
 
15. Identity of natural persons who are the beneficial owners of the shares proposed to be allotted 

and/or who ultimately control the proposed allottees: Not applicable 
 
16. Undertaking that the issuer shall re-compute the price of the specified securities in terms of the 

provision of these regulations where it is required to do so: 
 

Since, the Company’s Equity Shares are listed and traded for a period more than 90 trading days, 

therefore, there is no need for the Company to re-compute the price of Equity Shares in terms of the 

provisions of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. 

 
17. Compliance Certificate: 

The Certificate from M/s Vikas Verma and Associates, (FRN: P2012DE081400) Practicing Company 
Secretary, New Delhi confirming that the proposed issue of warrants convertible into equity shares 
is being made in accordance with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 is obtained and the same will 
be attached as Annexure-I and will be displayed on the website of the company at the link 
www.orienttradelink.in. 
 
18. Compliances: 

The Company has complied with the requirement of rule 19A of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) 
Rules, 1957 and Regulation 38 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 maintaining a minimum of 25% of the paid up capital in the hands of the public. 
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19. Lock in of Equity Shares: 

The proposed allotment of warrants convertible into equity shares shall be subject to lock-in as per 

the provisions of Chapter V of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. Further, the entire pre-

preferential allotment shareholding of all the proposed allottees, if any shall be locked in as per the 

requirements of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations 2018 as amended from time to time. 

 

20. Disclosure as specified in under Regulation 163 (1) (i) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations: 
 
i. It is hereby confirmed that neither the Company nor its promoters and Directors and to the 

Company's Knowledge any of its Promoters is a wilful defaulter and Fraudulent Borrower.   

ii. It is hereby confirmed that neither the Company nor its promoters and Directors is declared as 

fugitive economic offender under Fugitive Economic Offender Act, 2018. 

 

21. The current and proposed status of the allottees post the preferential issues namely, promoter 
or non-promoter as required under Regulation 163(1) (J) is mentioned below: 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Name of Allottees Current Status Status after proposed 
preferential issue 

1.  Sanjay Sinha                       Non-Promoter Non-Promoter 
2.  Chattar Singh        Non-Promoter Non-Promoter 
3.  Mahesh Kumar Verma          Non-Promoter Non-Promoter 
4.  Jasvinder Singh                    Non-Promoter Non-Promoter 
5.  Rama Luthra                          Non-Promoter Non-Promoter 
6.  Ramudagar Kamat                 Non-Promoter Non-Promoter 

 

22. Other disclosure: 
 
i. The Proposed allottees have not sold/transferred any equity shares during the 90 trading days 

preceding the Relevant Date. 

ii. During the period, the Company has not issued any securities on preferential basis or Private 

Placement basis other than mentioned above. 

iii. The Issuer Company has not issued any securities for consideration other than cash and 

hence, the Valuation Report of the Registered Valuer is not applicable. 

The approval of the Members by way of Special Resolution is required in term of the applicable 

provisions of Sections 23, 42 and 62 of the Act read with applicable rules thereto and relevant 

provisions of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and accordingly the approval of the Members of 

the Company is being sought. 

The Board recommends that the resolution set out at this item to be passed as Special Resolution. 

 
Item No. 8: 

The Company is having standing borrowings in its liabilities side to which the company now desires to 
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convert into the equity capital. The Borrowings worth INR 70,73,000/- (Indian Rupees Seventy Lakh 
Seventy Three Thousand Only) is now decided to be converted into the 6,43,000 (Six Lakh Forty Three 
Thousand) equity shares of INR 11/- (Indian Rupees Eleven Only) each including premium of INR 1/- 
(Indian Rupees One Only) each. 
 
The Board of Directors at their meeting held on August 13, 2022, on the basis of fresh request letter received 
from the Lender, has decided to convert an amount aggregating to INR 70,73,000 (Indian Rupees Seventy 
Lakh Seventy Three Thousand Only) from outstanding loan amount due toward the unsecured loan of 
Lender on preferential basis into the Equity Shares of the Company, subject to approval of Members by 
way of Special Resolution and such other approvals as may be required under applicable laws. 
 
It is proposed to create, offer, issue and allot on preferential basis to the Lender up to maximum of 6,43,000 
(Six Lakh Forty Three Thousand) Equity Shares of Face value of INR 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten Only) each, 
at a price of INR 11/- (Indian Rupees Eleven only) per Equity Share including premium of INR 1/- (Indian 
Rupees One Only) each, which is in compliance with the provisions of Chapter V of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, (“SEBI ICDR 
Regulations”), aggregating to INR 70,73,000 /- (Indian Rupees Seventy Lakh Seventy Three Thousand 
only) upon the conversion of whole unsecured loan outstanding as on date. 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 42 and Section 62 of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Chapter 
V of SEBI ICDR Regulations any preferential allotment of Securities needs to be approved by the Members 
of the Company by way of a Special Resolution. Further, in terms of Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR 
Regulations, certain disclosures are required to be made to the Members of the Company which forms part 
of this Explanatory Statement. Details of the Issue are as under: 
 

1. The allotment of the Equity Shares is subject to the Lender not having sold any Equity Shares of 
the Company during the 90 trading days preceding the Relevant Date (i.e. August 31, 2022). The 
proposed allottee has represented that it has not sold any Equity Shares of the Company during the 
90 trading days preceding the Relevant Date. 

 
2. The relevant disclosures as required under Companies Act, 2013 and Chapter V of the SEBI ICDR 

Regulations are set out below: 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 62(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereon, 
the company is required to obtain the approval of shareholders by special resolution, for the conversion of 
the loan into equity shares of the company. The Company proposes to allot the equity shares of the company 
in the above mentioned manner. In pursuance of the same, your Directors recommend the Resolution No. 
8 as Special Resolution. The equity shares proposed to be issued shall rank pari passu with the existing 
equity shares of a company. 
 

1. Objects of the issue: 
 
The Members are informed that the object of the issue of the Equity Shares by way of the proposed 
preferential offer is to convert an amount aggregating to INR 70,73,000 /- (Indian Rupees Seventy Lakh 
Seventy Three Thousand only), from the outstanding amount of unsecured loans given by the Lender to the 
Company at the request of the Lender. The Board of Directors of the Company have decided to convert 
unsecured loans in to Equity Shares which is in best interest of the Company and it will also strengthen the 
financial position of the Company which may increase net worth of the Company. The unsecured loan was 
used for business expansion and growth of loan portfolio of the Company. 
 
The proposed conversion will help the company in increasing its capital base and reducing the debt 
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exposure. 
 

2. Maximum number of specified securities to be issued: 
 
It is proposed to issue 6,43,000 (Six Lakh Forty Three Thousand) Equity Shares of face value of INR 10/- 
(Rupees Ten only) each of the Company. 
 

3. Basis on which the price has been arrived at: 
 
Since the shares of the Company are frequently traded, the issue price for the preferential allotment is 
determined as per the regulation 164 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. Accordingly, the minimum issue 
price has been calculated on the basis of trading at BSE. Each warrant is convertible into one equity share 
of Face value of INR 10/- (Indian Rupee Ten only) each fully paid up in accordance with the provisions 
of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. 

In terms of the applicable provisions of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 the price at which warrants / 
equity shares shall be allotted shall not be less than higher of the following: 

a) the 90 trading days volume weighted average price of the related equity shares quoted on the 
recognized stock exchange preceding the relevant date; 

b) the 10 trading days volume weighted average price of the related equity shares quoted on the 
recognized stock exchange preceding the relevant date; 

Accordingly, the price per warrant, to be issued, is fixed at INR 11/- (Indian Rupees Eleven only) which 
shall be higher than the price as computed under Regulation 164 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. 

Since the equity shares of the Company have been listed on the recognized Stock Exchanges for a period 
of more than 90 trading days prior to the Relevant Date, it is not required to re- compute the price per 
share warrant to be issued and therefore, the Company is not required to submit the undertaking specified 
under the Regulations 163 (1) (g) and 163 (1) (h) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. 
 

4. The class or classes of persons to whom the allotment is proposed to be made:  
 
The allotment is proposed to be made to entity and individuals which is part of Promoter & Promoter group. 
 

5. Relevant Date:  
 
The “Relevant Date” for the offer, issue and allotment of Equity Shares by way of a preferential issue, as 
per the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 for determination of minimum price is Wednesday, August 31, 
2022 being the date thirty days prior to the date on which the meeting of shareholders’ resolution is passed. 
 

6. Intent of the Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel to subscribe the offer: 
 
Except Mr. Aushim Khetarpal, Managing Director of the Company, None of promoters, Director and key 
Managerial Personnel are interested in the same transaction.   
 

7. The time frame within which the allotment shall be completed: 
 
The Equity Shares shall be issued and allotted by the Company to the Proposed Allottees within a 
period of 15 (Fifteen) days from the date of receipt of Members’ approval, provided that, where the 
issue and allotment of the said equity shares is pending on account of pendency of any approval by 

25



 

 
                                                                                                     

 

any Regulatory Authority (including, but not limited to the BSE Limited and/or SEBI), MCA or the 
Government of India, the issue and allotment shall be completed within a period of 15 (Fifteen) days 
from the date of receipt of last of such approvals or such other time as may be prescribed or permitted 
by the SEBI, Stock Exchanges or other relevant authorities. 
 

8. Change in control, if any, in the Company that would occur consequent to the preferential offer: 

There shall be no change in the management or control of the Company pursuant to the issue of the 

warrants Convertible into Equity Shares. 

 
9. Number of persons to whom allotment on preferential basis have already been made during the 

year in terms of no. of securities as well as the price:  
 
No allotment made during the year. 
 

10. The shareholding pattern of the Company before the proposed issue and after the proposed 
preferential issue of equity shares as follows: 

 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Category Pre Issue Proposed 
Issue 

Post Issue 

No. of 
Shares held 

%   of 
Shareholdi 
ng 

Warrants 
convertible 
into Equity 
Shares 

No. of 
Shares held 

% of 
Share holding 

A Promoters’ 
holding 

     

1 Indian:    - - 
 Individual 3,17,886 2.90 5,43,000 8,60,886 6.33 
 Bodies 

Corporate 
- - - - - 

 Sub-Total 3,17,886 2.90 5,43,000 8,60,886 6.33 
2 Foreign 

Promoters 
- - 

- 
- - 

 Sub-Total 
(A) 

3,17,886 2.90 5,43,000 8,60,886 6.33 

B Non- 
Promoters’ 

- - - - - 

 holding:      

1 Institutional 
Investors 

- - - - - 

2 Non- 
Institutions 

- - - - - 

 Private 
Corporate 
Bodies 

- - - - - 
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 Directors and 
Relatives 

- - - - - 

 Indian 
Public 

89,93,485 82.02 21,00,000 1,10,93,485 81.52 

 Any 
Others 

     

 Bodies 
Corporate 

3,76,849 3.44 - 3,76,849 2.77 

 Non- 
Resident 
Indian 

17,293 0.16 - 17,293 0.13 

 HUF 2,13,636 1.95 - 2,13,636 1.57 

 Clearing 
Members 

10,35,785 9.45 - 10,35,785 7.61 

 Trust 10,066 0.08 - 10,066 0.07 

 Sub-Total 
(B) 

1,06,47,114 97.10 21,00,000 1,13,32,720 93.67 

 GRAND 
TOTAL 

1,09,65,000 100 26,43,000 1,36,08,000 100 

 
*The post issue shareholding pattern in the above table prepared on considering proposed allottees 
mentioned in Item No. 7, Item No. 8 and Item No. 9.  
 

11. The names of the proposed allottees and the percentage of post preferential offer capital that may 
be held by them: 

 
SI 
No. 

Name of Proposed Allottees 
(Non-Promoter Category) 

Pre issue 
holding  

% of 
shar
es 

Number of 
Equity 
Shares to be 
Issued 
Pursuant to 
Conversion 
of Loan 

Post issue 
holding 

Post Issue      
Percentage 

1. Aushim Khetarpal                     1,76,554 13.59 4,43,000 19,32,816 4.55 

2. Asha Khetarpal                          868 0.93 1,00,000 2,02,000 0.74 

3. Sumeet Sharma proprietor of 
M/s. Sumeet  Enterprises             

97 0.00 1,00,000 1,00,097 0.74 

 Total 1,77,519 14.52 6,43,000 8,20,422 6.04 
 

12. Report of Registered Valuer:  

No report of registered valuer is required for the offer, issue and allotment of the warrants convertible 
into Equity Shares under the provisions of second proviso to Rule 13(1) of the Companies (Share 
Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014, as amended. 
 

13. The justification for the allotment proposed to be made for consideration other than cash together 
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with valuation report of the registered Valuer: Not applicable 
 

14. Identity of natural persons who are the beneficial owners of the shares proposed to be allotted 
and/or who ultimately control the proposed allottees. Not Applicable 

 
15. Undertaking that the issuer shall re-compute the price of the specified securities in terms of the 

provision of these regulations where it is required to do so: 
 
Since, the Company’s Equity Shares are listed and traded for a period more than 90 trading days, 

therefore, there is no need for the Company to re-compute the price of Equity Shares in terms of the 

provisions of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. 

 

16. Compliance Certificate: 

The Certificate from M/s Vikas Verma and Associates, (FRN: P2012DE081400) Practicing Company 
Secretary, New Delhi confirming that the proposed issue of equity shares is being made in accordance 
with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 is obtained and the same will be attached as Annexure-II 
and will be displayed on the website of the company at the link www.orienttradelink.in. 
 

17. Compliances: 

The Company has complied with the requirement of rule 19A of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) 
Rules, 1957 and Regulation 38 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 maintaining a minimum of 25% of the paid up capital in the hands of the public. 
  

18. Lock in of Equity Shares: 
 

The proposed allotment of warrants convertible into equity shares shall be subject to lock-in as per the 
provisions of Chapter V of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. Further, the entire pre-preferential 
allotment shareholding of all the proposed allottees, if any shall be locked in as per the requirements of 
SEBI (ICDR) Regulations 2018 as amended from time to time. 
 

19. Disclosure as specified in under Regulation 163 (1) (i) of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations: 
 
i. It is hereby confirmed that neither the Company nor its promoters and Directors and to the 

Company's Knowledge any of its Promoters is a wilful defaulter and Fraudulent Borrower.   

ii. It is hereby confirmed that neither the Company nor its promoters and Directors is declared as 

fugitive economic offender under Fugitive Economic Offender Act, 2018. 

 

20. The current and proposed status of the allottees post the preferential issues namely, promoter or 
non-promoter as required under Regulation 163(1) (J) is mentioned below: 

 
Sr. 
No. 

Name of Allottees Current Status Status after 
proposed 
preferential issue 

1. Aushim Khetarpal                     Promoter Promoter 
2. Asha Khetarpal                          Promoter Promoter 
3. Sumeet Sharma proprietor of M/s. 

Sumeet  Enterprises              
Non-Promoter Non-Promoter 
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21. Other disclosure: 

 
i. The Proposed allottees have not sold/transferred any equity shares during the 90 trading days 

preceding the Relevant Date. 
ii. During the period, the Company has not issued any securities on preferential basis or Private 

Placement basis other than mentioned above. 
iii. The Issuer Company has not issued any securities for consideration other than cash and hence, the 

Valuation Report of the Registered Valuer is not applicable. 

The approval of the Members by way of Special Resolution is required in term of the applicable 

provisions of Sections 23, 42 and 62 of the Act read with applicable rules thereto and relevant 

provisions of the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and accordingly the approval of the Members of 

the Company is being sought. 

ITEM No. 9: 

 
The members of the Company are hereby informed that taking into consideration, the benefits derived/ 
to be derived by Value Addition Mr. Subramaniam Sankaran, CEO of the Company, the Board in its 
meeting held on 13th August, 2022 has decided to issue sweat equity shares to them, The Board of 
Directors recommends to issue and allot 4,00,000 (Four Lakh) Equity share as Sweat Equity Shares 
each of INR 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten Only) per Share at a Price of INR 11/- (Indian Rupees Eleven 
Only) per share to each of Mr. Subramaniam Sankaran. 
 
In terms of the resolutions of Board of Directors passed on August 13, 2022, the Company has agreed 
to grant/issue of 4,00,000 (Four Lakh) equity shares at a value of INR 11/- (Indian Rupees Eleven 
Only) each towards his contribution, making available rights in the nature(intellectual property rights 
or value additions, by whatever name called) and knowhow provided by Mr. Subramaniam Sankaran, 
(hereinafter referred as “allottees”) to the Company and valued by vide their Valuation Report 
enclosed with this notice as Annexure-III 
 
Summary of the proposed issue as per Regulation 32 read with Schedule-II of SEBI (Share Based 
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 and other applicable laws and guidelines as 
below: 
 
Sr. No. Particulars Relevant Disclosures  
1. The total number of shares to be issued 

as sweat equity. 
4,00,000 

2. The current market price of the shares of 
the company. 

7.77*  

3. The valuation of know-how or 
intellectual property rights or value 
addition to be received from the 
employee or director along with the 
valuation report / basis of valuation. 

44 Lakh 

4.  The names of the employees or directors 
or promoters to whom the sweat equity 
shares shall be issued and their 
relationship with the company. 

Mr. Subramaniam Sankaran, CEO of the 
Company. 
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5. The consideration to be paid for the 
sweat equity. 

No Consideration is to be paid, shares are 
being issued for value addition. 

6. The price at which the sweat equity 
shares shall be issued. 

INR 11/- 

7. Ceiling on managerial remuneration, if 
any, which will be affected by issuance 
of such sweat equity. 

The remuneration paid within within the 
limits under Section 197 read with schedule 
V of Companies Act, 2013. 

8.  A statement to the effect that the 
company shall conform to the 
accounting policies as specified by the 
Board. 

The directors hereby affirm and confirm 
that the Company shall adhere to the 
accounting policies as specified by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India, 
from time to time, in respect of the 
treatment and disclosure of this proposed 
Sweat Equity issue. 

9. Diluted Earnings Per Share pursuant to 
the issue of securities to be calculated in 
accordance with Accounting Standards 
specified by the Central Government. 
(Based on the Financial Statement of 
March 31, 2022 

0.11 

*Market value of shares on BSE Limited considered on the date of August 12, 2022 before the date of 
Board Meeting for approving the notice of the Annual General Meeting. 
 
The approval of the Members by way of Special Resolution is required in term of the applicable 
provisions of Sections 54 of the Act read with applicable rules thereto and relevant provisions of the 
SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 and accordingly the 
approval of the Members of the Company is being sought. 
 
ITEM NO. 10 & 11: 
 
The existing Memorandum of Association (“MOA”) and Articles of Association (“AOA”) of the 
Company was framed in terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. With the enactment of 
the Companies Act, 2013 major parts of the Companies Act, 1956 is no longer in force. Thus, with the 
coming into force of the Companies Act, 2013, the existing MOA and AOA require alteration in its 
several clauses. Hence, it is considered expedient to wholly replace the existing MOA and AOA with 
the new MOA and AOA in line with the new Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company, proposed to be 
amended as stated above, is being uploaded on the Company’s website for perusal by the Shareholders. 
A copy of the existing and proposed MOA and AOA would be available for inspection by the members 
at the registered office of the company on all working days (Monday to Saturday) up to 13th March, 
2022 (i.e. last date for receiving Postal Ballot Forms by Scrutinizer). 
 
The alteration of MOA & AOA requires the approval of the Shareholders by means of a Special 
Resolution pursuant to Section 13 and Section 14 of the Companies Act, 2013 and accordingly the 
approval of the Shareholders is being sought through Postal Ballot. 
 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives is, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution, except to the extent of their shareholdings 
in the Company, if any. 
 

30



 

 
                                                                                                     

 

ITEM NO. 12: 
 

In view of future expansion plans, the Company proposes to increase its Authorized Share Capital of 
the Company from existing INR 12,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Twelve Crore) divided into 1,20,00,000 
(One Crore Twenty Lakh) Equity Shares of INR 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each to INR 14,00,00,000/- 
(Indian Rupees Fourteen Crore Only) divided into 1,40,00,000 (One Crore Forty Lakh) Equity Shares of 
INR 10/- (Rupees Ten Only) each. Accordingly, the Company requires to pass an Ordinary resolution 
to increase the Authorized Share Capital and alteration of Clause V of the Memorandum of Association 
of the Company. 

The members may also note that pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules 
made there under, alteration of Authorized Share Capital of the Company requires approval of 
Members of the Company. 

None of the other Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their respective relatives 
are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolution. 

The Board recommends that the resolution set out at Item No. 12 be passed as an Ordinary Resolution. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: September 06, 2022 

By Order of the Board of Directors 
OrientTradelink Limited 

 
Sd/- 

Akash Toshniwal 
Company Secretary  
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Annexure-II 
To, 
Board of Directors 
Orient Tradelink Limited 
801-A, 8th Floor, Mahalay Building, 
Behind Fairdeal House, Off: C. G. Road,  
Swastik Cross Roads Navrangpura  
Ahmedabad, GJ-380009 IN 
 
Dear Sir, 
 
Sub: Application for “In-principle approval” prior to issue and allotment of 16,00,000 Convertible 

Warrants into Equity, 6,43,000 Equity Shares pursuant to conversion of loan and 4,00,000 
Sweat Equity Shares on preferential basis under Regulation 28(1) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015. 

 
We, Vikas Verma & Associates, Practicing Company Secretary have verified the relevant records and 
documents of Orient Tradelink Limited with respect to the proposed preferential issue by the company as 
per Chapter V of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018 and certify that: 
 
a) None of the proposed allottee(s) has/ have sold any equity shares of the company during the 90 trading 

days preceding the relevant date. Further, where the proposed allottee(s) is/ are promoter/ promoter 
group entity, then none of entities in the promoter and promoter group entities has/ have sold any equity 
share of the company during the 90 trading days preceding the relevant date. 

 
b) The pre-preferential shareholding of each of proposed allottee(s) has been locked in accordance with 

Regulation 167 (6) SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. Further, there is no sale/ pledge of pre-preferential 
holding from (Relevant Date) till (date of lock-in). The details of allottee-wise pre-preferential 
shareholding and lock-in thereon is as given hereunder: 

 
Name of the 
Proposed Allottee 

DP ID * Qty Lock-in details 
From To 

Aushim Khetarpal 12070600 110 31.08.2022 Upto 90 days from date of 
trading approval 

Aushim Khetarpal 12074200 90 31.08.2022 Upto 90 days from date of 
trading approval 

Aushim Khetarpal IN300206 254 31.08.2022 Upto 90 days from date of 
trading approval 

Aushim Khetarpal IN302994 176000 31.08.2022 Upto 90 days from date of 
trading approval 

Aushim Khetarpal IN303028 100 31.08.2022 Upto 90 days from date of 
trading approval 

Asha Khetarpal IN300183 868 31.08.2022 Upto 90 days from date of 
trading approval 

Sumeet Sharma IN300118 97 31.08.2022 Upto 90 days from date of 
trading approval 

Mahesh Kumar 
Verma 

IN302994 544 31.08.2022 Upto 90 days from date of 
trading approval 

Sanjay Sinha 12074200 45361 31.08.2022 Upto 90 days from date of 
trading approval 

Sanjay Sinha IN300476 11967 31.08.2022 Upto 90 days from date of 
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trading approval 
Rama Luthra IN302994 42377 31.08.2022 Upto 90 days from date of 

trading approval 
 (*) client id/ folio no in case allottee hold the securities in physical form 
 
c) None of the proposed allottees belonging to promoter(s) or the promoter group is ineligible for 

allotment in terms of Regulations 159 of SEBI (ICDR) Regulations, 2018. 
 
d) The proposed issue is being made in accordance with the requirements of Chapter V of SEBI (Issue of 

Capital and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2018, Section 42 and 62 of the Companies Act 2013 
and Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 and other 
requirements of Companies Act, 2013. Further, the company has complied with all legal and statutory 
formalities and no statutory authority has restrained the company from issuing these proposed 
securities. 

 
e) The proposed preferential issue is being made in compliance with the provisions of Memorandum of 

Association (MoA) and Article of Association (AoA) of the company. It is further confirmed that for 
the proposed preferential issue, the price of the equity shares of the company has been determined in 
compliance with the valuation requirement as mentioned in the AoA of the company.” 

 
f) The total allotment to the allottee or allottees acting in concert in the present preferential issue or in the 

same financial year i.e. 2022-23 is more than 5% of the post issue fully diluted share capital of the 
issuer. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: 05.09.2022                                                                  
Place: New Delhi                                                                                                  
UDIN: F009192D000929056 

For & on behalf of  
Vikas Verma & Associates 

Company Secretaries 
(FRN: P2012DE081400) 

 
 

Sd/- 
Vivek Rawal 

Partner 
Membership No. A43231 

CP No. 22687 
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DISCLAIMER AND CONFIDENTIALITY 
 

This valuation report (“Report”) is being furnished on the request of the management of Orient Tradelink 
Limited (herein referred to as “Company”) to determine the value addition of allottees under Regulation 34 of 
SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulation, 2021 and Regulation 8 (1) of SEBI (Issue 
of Sweat Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021.   
 
The report has been prepared by Fast Track Finsec Private Limited (“Fasttrack”) from information extracted 
from desk research, discussions with management and other data supplied by the management of the company 
and other sources believed to be reliable and true. Our scope is limited to the data supplied by the management. 
The report cannot be distributed, published, reproduced or used, without the prior express written consent of 
“Fasttrack”, for any purpose except as mentioned in the report. 
 
The valuation has been derived using details as received from management & other information as have been 
detailed in later part of the report. While the information provided herein is believed to be true and reliable to 
the best of our knowledge, we do not make any representations or warranties express or implied, as to the 
accuracy or completeness of such information. In case of any future inquiry or proceedings before any regulatory 
authority in regard to accuracy of data, whatsoever, Fasttrack shall not be answerable directly or indirectly. 
However, for any future representation, if required, before any regulatory authority, it shall be on chargeable 
basis. 
 
In furnishing the report, Fasttrack reserves the right to amend or replace the report at any time. The information 
contained herein is based on certain assumptions and management’s analysis of information available at the time 
thereon report was prepared. Fasttrack does not purport to give any representation, warranty or other assurance 
in relation to his document. 
 
This report and the information contained herein are confidential. It is intended only for the sole use and 
information of Client and only for the purpose mentioned herein. We are not responsible to any other user of the 
report for any decision of such user based on this report. Any user intending to provide finance / invest in the 
shares/business of the company and/or the client, its subsidiaries, if any, shall do so after seeking their own 
professional advice and after carrying out their own due diligence procedures to ensure that they are making an 
informed decision. 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Our current scope of work for this exercise includes: 
 

 To evaluate the value addition of Mr. Subramanian Sankaran under Regulation 34 of SEBI (Share Based 
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulation, 2021 and Regulation 8 (1) of SEBI (Issue of Sweat 
Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 for the purpose of issuing sweat equity shares. The valuation has been 
arrived at by following the globally acceptable pricing methodology.  

 
As such the report is to be read in totality, and not in parts, in conjunction with the relevant documents 

referred to in this report. While utmost care has been taken, however, our report is subject to the 
limitations detailed hereinafter: 
 

a. Valuation Date of the Report – Valuation analysis and results are specific to the cut-off date i.e., 
31st March 2022 contemplated on the basis of audited financial statement as on 31st March, 
2022 

b. Reliance on the Information provided – We have been provided with certain written and verbal 
information and assumptions from the management of the company. We have relied on the 
information provided by the management and experts and have not conducted any detailed enquiry. 
Accordingly, we do not express any opinion or offer any form of assurance regarding its 
accuracy and completeness. 

c. Valuation Analysis – Valuation of claims is not a precise art and the conclusions arrived at will be 
subjective and dependent on the exercise of individual judgment. 

d. Caution to users of the Report – This report and the information contained herein are confidential. 
It is intended only for the sole use of the purpose mentioned in this report. 
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DATA RELIED UPON 
 

For the purpose of the Report, documents and information, as provided by the management of company have 
been relied upon and we have not verified the same. 

We have relied upon the following information provided to Fasttrack: 

1. Standalone Audited Financial Statements of Orient Tradelink Limited as on 31st March, 2022. 

2. Value Addition in percentage terms 

3. Management representation letter provided  by the management. 

4. MOA & AOA of the Company.  

5. Brief profile of allottees.  

6. Other information considered useful during the course of assignment. 

Wherever required, all the accounts, projections and schedules listed above have been certified by the 
management of company.  
We have also relied upon verbal explanation and information given to us by the management of the Company 
during the course of our exercise. 

 

COMPANY OVERVIEW 
 
Orient Tradelink Limited was incorporated on 22nd August 1994, with the Registrar of Companies, 
Ahmedabad. The Corporate Identification Number of the Company is L65910GJ1994PLC022833. 
The registered office of the Company is situated at 801-A, 8th Floor, Mahalay Building, Behind 
Fairdeal House, Off: C. G. Road,Swastik Cross Roads Navrangpura, Ahmedabad, Gujrat-380009 
India. 
List of Directors 

DIN Name of Director Start Date 
00060319 Aushim Khetarpal 01/05/2002 
00899838 Balakrishna Ramarao Maddur 11/06/2019 
07892196 Mahesh Kumar Verma 01/08/2017 
09492441 Rachna Panwar 15/02/2022 

 

 
VALUATION METHODOLOGY  

 
Globally Acceptable Pricing Methodology (i.e. Net Asset Value Method). 
The net worth of the Company is determined based on the Net equity plus the reserve and surplus/retained 
earning and notes collectively. 

VALUATION OF “VALUE ADDITION” 
 

The  valuation of value addition is as follows: 
Sr. 
No. 

Name of proposed allottees Amount (Rs. 
Lakhs) 

1. Subramanian Sankaran 44.00 
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Working:

It 
is seen that the company estimates the value addition to be done by Mr. Sankaran to be either 4.36% of Net-
Worth or 4% of Paid up capital. Thus, the value addition turns out to be Rs. 44 Lakhs (Rounded Off). 

 

 

  

S.NO. PARTICULARS SOURCE DETAILS AMOUNT (RS. LAKHS)
1 Paid Up Share Capital Balance Sheet 31.03.2022 1,096.50                          
2 Reserves & Surpus Balance Sheet 31.03.2022 (87.80)                              
3 Net-Worth Total (1+2) 31.03.2022 1,008.70                          

4
Value Addition by Subramanian 
Sankaran  being add as remuneration as 
Ratio of Net Worth Management 4.36% 43.98                                

5
Value Addition by Subramanian 
Sankaran  being add as remuneration as 
ratio of Paid Up Share Capital Management 4.00% 43.86                                

 ORIENT TRADELINK LIMITED
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             ANNEXURE 
 

INFORMATION IN PURSUANT REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND 
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 AND SECETARIAL STANDARDS (SS-2) OF 
GENERAL MEETING OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT/ RETIRING 
BY ROTATION AT THE ENSUING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ARE AS FOLLOW 
INFORMATION: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Particulars Ms. Rachna Panwar 
Age 36 
Qualifications She is a Graduate 
Experience (including expertise in specific 
functional area)/Brief Resume 

5 years 

Terms and Conditions of Appointment 
/Reappointment 

As per the resolution passed by the Board of director of 
the company on February 15, 2022 Ms. Rachna Panwar 
was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive 
Director. 

Remuneration last drawn (including sitting 
fees, if any) 

- 

Date of first appointment on the Board 15/02/2022 
Shareholding in the Company as on March 
31, 2022 

- 

Relationship with other Directors / Key 
Managerial Personnel 

- 

Number of meetings of the Board attended 
during the year 

3 (Three) 

Directorships of other Boards as on March 
31, 2022 

1 (One) 

Membership / Chairmanship of Committees 
of other Boards as on March 31, 2022 

- 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

To, 

The Members, 
ORIENT TRADELINK LIMITED 
 
Dear Members, 
 
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting you the 28th Annual Report together with the audited statement of 
Accounts of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022. 
 

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS: 
                                                                                                                                                (In INR) 

P A R T I C U L A R S 2021-22 2020-21 

Revenue from operation 1133.89 986.07 
Other income 119.64 85.81 
Total Revenue 1253.52 1071.88 
Purchase of Stock in trade  1047.98 681.23 
Change in inventories of finished goods (80.34) (93.62) 
Employee benefits expenses  34.26 52.39 
Depreciation and amortization expenses  94.38 94.47 
Other Expenses 43.53 226.51 
Total Expenses 1139.55 960.97 
Profit before tax 113.97 110.91 
Less: Tax Expenses  55.34 39.06 
Profit after tax 58.63 71.85 
Other Comprehensive Income - - 
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the 
Year 

58.63 71.85 

Earning per Shares (Basic) 0.11 0.13 
Earning per Shares (Diluted)  0.11 0.13 

 
2. RESULTS OF OPERATIONS & STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS: 
 

 The revenue generated from operations amounted to INR 1,133.89/- Lakhs in F.Y. 2021-22 as compared 
to F.Y. 2020-21, in which revenue generated was amounted to INR 986.07/- Lakhs. 
 

 Net profit after tax is INR 58.63/- Lakhs in F.Y. 2021-22 in Comparison to INR 71.85/- Lakhs in F.Y. 
2020-21.  

 
3. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:  
 

There was no Changes in the nature of business of the Company during the current financial year.  
 

4. SHARE CAPITAL: 
 

The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is INR 12,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twelve Crore). During the 
year under review, there was no change in the Company’s issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital. 
On March 31, 2022, the paid-up capital stood at INR 10,96,50,000/- (Rupees Ten Crore Ninety Six Lakh 
Fifty Thousand) divided into 1,09,65,000 (One Crore Nine Lakh Sixty Five Thousand) Equity Shares of INR 
10/- (Rupee Ten Only) each.   
  

5. DIVIDEND: 
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The Board of Directors has not recommended any dividend for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022.  

 
6. TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION 

FUND:  
 
The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as there was no outstanding 
unclaimed/unpaid dividend as on 31st March 2022. 

 
7. TRANSFER TO RESERVES: 
 

During the current year, the company has transferred INR 58.63/- Lakhs into the General Reserve of the 
Company and the closing balance of General Reserve as on 31st March 2022 stands INR -58.63/-Lakh only. 

 
8. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION 

BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND DATE OF REPORT: 
 

The impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s financial statements has been given in Note No. 2 of the Notes 
to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022. Based on the Company assessment, no material 
impact has been noted. Considering that it is a dynamic and evolving situation, the management will continue 
to closely monitor and evaluate the impact of any material change in macro-economic and other related 
factors which may have bearing on the company's operations. 
 

9. DEPOSITS: 
 

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and as such, no amount on account of principal 
or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet for the F.Y.2021-22.   

 
10. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE U/S 186 OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
 

The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments, wherever required, have been disclosed in the financial 
statements, which also form part of this report. 

 
11. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 
 

The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility Initiatives as 
provisions of section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 are not applicable on the Company. 

 
12. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, TECHNOLOGY 

ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO: 
 

The particulars as prescribed under sub-section (3)(m) of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2014 read with 
Rule 8(3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are annexed herewith at Annexure I. 

 
13. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OF THE COMPANY: 
 

Appointment/ Re-appointment/Resignation: 
 
During the Financial Year under review Mr. Sunny Panwar (DIN: 09091045) resigned from the post of Non-
Executive Independent Director on the Board of the Company with effect from September 28, 2021. 
 
Ms. Rachna Narula (DIN: 06920054) resigned from the post of Non-Executive (Non-Independent) Director 
on the Board of the Company with effect from September 28, 2021. 
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Ms. Rachna Panwar (DIN: 09492441) appointed as Additional and Non-Executive (Non Independent) 
Director on the Board of the company with effect from February 15, 2022, liable to retire by Rotation subject 
to approval of Members at this AGM. 

 
In accordance with provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Aushim 
Khetarpal, (DIN: 00060319), Executive  Director retires by rotation at the ensuing AGM and being eligible 
offers himself for re-appointment. 
 
Independent Director: 
 
In terms of Section 149 of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, Mr. Mahesh Kumar Verma and Mr. 
Balakrishna Ramarao Maddur are the Independent Directors of the Company as on date of this report. 
 
All Independent Directors of the Company have given requisite declarations under Section 149(7) of the Act, 
that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act along with Rules 
framed thereunder, Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI Listing Regulations and have complied with the Code of 
Conduct of the Company as applicable to the Board of directors and Senior Managers. In terms of Regulation 
25(8) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors have confirmed that they are not aware of 
any circumstance or situation, which exists or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact 
their ability to discharge their duties with an objective independent judgment and without any external 
influence. The Company has received confirmation from all the Independent Directors of their registration 
on the Independent Directors Database maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs, in terms of 
Section 150 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. 
 
In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors possess the requisite expertise and experience and are 
persons of high integrity and repute. They fulfill the conditions specified in the Act as well as the Rules made 
thereunder and are independent of the management. 
 
Key Managerial Personnel: 
 
In terms of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) of the Company during FY 2021-
22 are: 

 
 Mr. Akash Toshniwal was the Company Secretary w.e.f. 15/07/2020 

           
 Mr. Mukesh Bhatnagar resigned from the post of chief financial officer w.e.f. 09/04/2021 and Mr. 

Aushim Khetarpal was appointed as chief financial officer of the company w.e.f. 20/04/2021 
 
 

14. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD: 
 
During the year the Board met 6 (Six) times to deliberate on various matters on 28/06/2021, 12/08/2021, 
12/11/2021, 12/02/2022, 15/02/2022 and 29/03/2022. For details, please refer to the Report on Corporate 
Governance, which forms a part of this Annual Report. 

 
15. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD: 
 

The Committees of the Board focus on certain specific areas and make informed decisions in line with the 
delegated authority. 
 
The following Committees constituted by the Board function according to their respective roles and defined 
scope: 
 
 Audit Committee 
 Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
 Stakeholder Relationship Committee 
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Details of composition, terms of reference and number of meetings held for respective committees are given 
in the Report on Corporate Governance, which forms a part of this Annual Report. Further, during the year 
under review, all recommendations made by the various committees have been accepted by the Board. 

 
16. POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 
 

The Company’s Policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration and other matters provided in Section 
178(3) of the Act has been briefly disclosed hereunder and in the Report on Corporate Governance, which 
is part of this Annual Report. 
 
The NRC is responsible for developing competency requirements for the Board based on the industry and 
strategy of the Company. The Board composition analysis reflects in-depth understanding of the Company, 
including its strategies, environment, operations, financial condition and compliance requirements. 
 
In terms of the provisions of Section 178(3) of the Act, and Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 
the NRC has formulated the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of 
Directors, the key features of which are as follows: 
 
 Qualifications – The Board nomination process encourages diversity of thought, experience, knowledge, 

age and gender. It also ensures that the Board has an appropriate blend of functional and industry 
expertise. 

 Positive Attributes - Apart from the duties of Directors as prescribed in the Act, the Directors are 
expected to demonstrate high standards of ethical behavior, communication skills and independent 
judgment. The Directors are also expected to abide by the respective Code of Conduct as applicable to 
them 

 
The Directors affirm that the remuneration paid to Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and employees is 
as per the Remuneration Policy of the Company. 
 
The said Policy is also available on the website of the Company i.e. https://www.orienttradelink.in/.  

 
17. BOARD EVALUATION: 
 

The annual evaluation process of the Board of Directors, individual Directors and Committees was 
conducted in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations. 
 
The Board evaluated its performance after seeking inputs from all the Directors on the basis of criteria such 
as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning, etc. 
The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the committee 
members on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee 
meetings, etc. The above criteria are broadly based on the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India. 
 
The Board and the NRC reviewed the performance of individual Directors on the basis of criteria such as 
the contribution of the individual Director to the Board and committee meetings like preparedness on the 
issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. 
 
In a separate meeting of independent directors, performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board 
as a whole was evaluated. Additionally, they also evaluated the Chairman of the Board, taking into account 
the views of Executive and Non-executive Directors in the aforesaid meeting. The Board also assessed the 
quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board 
that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties. The above evaluations 
were then discussed in the Board meeting and performance evaluation of Independent directors was done 
by the entire Board, excluding the Independent Director being evaluated. 
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18. FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 25(7) and Regulation 46 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, kindly 
refer to the Company’s website  https://www.orienttradelink.in/pdf/familarisation-policy.pdf for details of 
the familiarization program for IDs on their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the 
industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company and related matters. 
 

19. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 
 

The Company is taking every care for minimizing the risk involved in the manufacturing process of the unit. 
Responsible staff employed to take every care to minimize the risk factor in the factory. The risk 
management policy of the company can be accessed at company website i.e, 
https://www.orienttradelink.in/pdf/risk-management-policy.pdf  

 
20. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES 

 
Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(2) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in prescribed Form AOC-2 is annexed 
herewith at Annexure II. 

 
21. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
 

The company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company; hence, provisions of 
section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to preparation of consolidated financial statements are 
not applicable. 

 
22. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 
 

Pursuant to Section 177(9) of the Act, a vigil mechanism was established for directors and employees to 
report to the management instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected, fraud or violation of the 
Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy. The Vigil Mechanism provides a mechanism for employees 
of the Company to approach the Chairperson of the Audit Committee of the Company for redressal. No 
person has been denied access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

 
23. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES U/S 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
 

The Information & Statement of Particulars of employees pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Rule 5 (1) & 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rules, 2014 is annexed as Annexure III. 

 
24. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT AS REQUIRED U/S 134(3)(c) 
 

In terms of section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your directors state that: - 
 

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed; 
 
(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the 
company for that period;  

 
(c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets 
of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 
(d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis. 
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(e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that 

such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively 
 
(f) the Directors have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable 

laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

25. AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT: 

Statutory Auditors 
 
During the year, M/s. Harish B Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountants having Firm Registration No. 022464N 
has resigned from Statutory Auditors of the Company on September 30, 2021. 
 
Pursuant to Section 139(8) and other applicable provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made 
there under, Satish Kumar Gaddh, Chartered Accountant having Firm Registration No. 009641 were 
proposed to be appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy caused by the 
M/s. Harish B Gupta & Co., Chartered Accountant till conclusion of ensuring Annual General Meeting. 
 
The Statutory Auditor’s report does not contain any qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or 
disclaimers, which would be required to be dealt with in the Boards' Report. 

Internal Auditor 

Pursuant to Section 138 of the Act and Rules made there under, AM Sharma & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants having its head Office at SCO 32, D248/10, Balaji Complex, Laxmi Nagar, Delhi-110092 were 
appointed as Internal Auditors for the financial year 2020-21.  

Secretarial Auditor 
Pursuant to Section 204 of the Act and Rules made there under, the Board of Directors of the Company had 
appointed M/s Vikas Verma & Associates (Registration No. P2012DE081400) Practicing Company 
Secretary having its Registered Office at B-502, Statesman House, 148, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi -
110001, to conduct Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2020-21. The Report of the 
Secretarial Audit is annexed herewith as Annexure -IV.  

Cost Audit 

Maintenance of cost records and requirement of cost audit as prescribed under the provisions of Section 
148(1) of the Act are not applicable for the business activities carried out by the Company. 

26. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM & THEIR ADEQUECY: 

According to Section 134(5) (e) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Internal Financial Control (IFC) means the 
policies and procedures adopted by the Company for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of business, 
including adherence to the company’s policies, safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and timely preparation of reliable financial 
information. 

The Company has a well-placed, proper and adequate Internal Financial Control System which ensures that 
all the assets are safeguarded and protected and the transactions are authorized, recorded and reported 
correctly. 
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To further strengthen the internal control process, the company has developed the very comprehensive 
compliance management tool to drill down the responsibility of the compliance from top management to 
executive. 

Based on the results of such assessments carried out by management, no reportable material weakness or 
significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal financial controls was observed. 

27. DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

 
Company has adopted a policy on prevention, prohibitions and redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in 
line with the provision of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013 and has set up Committee for implementation of said policy. During the year Company 
has not received any complaint of harassment. 
 

28. CODE OF CONDUCT 
 

Commitment to ethical professional conduct is a must for every employee, including Board Members and 
Senior Management Personnel of the Company. The Code is intended to serve as a basis for ethical decision-
making in conduct of professional work. The Code of Conduct enjoins that each individual in the organization 
must know and respect existing laws, accept and provide appropriate professional views, and be upright in 
his conduct and observe corporate discipline. The duties of Directors including duties as an Independent 
Director as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013 also forms part of the Code of Conduct. All Board members 
and Senior Management Personnel affirm compliance with the Code of Conduct annually. 

29.  MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS & ANALYSIS REPORT 
 

As per SEBI Listing Regulations, Management Discussion and Analysis Report is annexed herewith at 
Annexure -V. 

30. EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN AS PROVIDED UNDER SUB-SECTION (3) OF SECTION 
92 

 
Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Act and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 
2014, the Annual Return for FY 2020-21 is available on Company’s website at 
https://www.orienttradelink.in/. 

 
31. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 

 
During the year under review the Company has complied with Secretarial Standards on Board and General 
Meetings issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 
32. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
Pursuant to Regulation 34 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, Report on Corporate Governance along with the 
certificate from a Practicing Company Secretary certifying compliance with conditions of Corporate 
Governance is part to this Report in Annexure-VI. 

 
33. GENERAL 

 
Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following matters as there 
were no transactions on these items during the year under review: 
 
 There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunal, which would 

impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operation 
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 No fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board. 
 There has been no application made or pending under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 

 
34. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: 
 

The Board of Directors wish to place on record its deep sense of appreciation for the committed services by 
all the employees of the Company. The Board of Directors would also like to express their sincere appreciation 
for the assistance and co-operation received from the financial institutions, banks, government and regulatory 
authorities, stock exchanges, customers, vendors, members during the year under review. 

 
                                             For & on behalf of 
 Orient Tradelink Limited 
  

Sd/- 
 

Sd/- 
 Mahesh Kumar Verma Aushim Khetarpal 

Date:13thAugust 2022 Independent Director Managing Director 
Place: New Delhi DIN: 07892196 DIN: 00060319 
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Annexure I 
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorbtion, Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo  
[Pursuant to Section 134 (3)(m) read with Rule 8(3) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014] 

 
(A) Conservation of Energy:- 

 
(i) The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy; NIL 
(ii) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate 

sources of energy; 
NIL 

(iii) The capital investment on energy conservation 
equipments. 

Nil  

 
(B) Technology absorption:- 

 
(i) The efforts made towards technology absorption; NIL  
(ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost 

reduction, product development or import 
substitution; 

NIL 

(iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the 
last three years reckoned from the beginning of the 
financial year)- 

NIL 

 (a) The details of technology imported; 
(b) The year of import; 
(c) Whether the technology been fully absorbed; 
(d) If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has 

not taken place, and the reasons thereof; and 

NIL 
 
 
 
 
 

(iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and 
Development. 

NIL 

 
(C) Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo:- 

 
(i) 
 

The Foreign Exchange earned in the terms of actual 
inflows during the year;  

NIL 

(ii) Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of 
actual outflow. 

NIL 
 

 

                                             For & on behalf of 
 Orient Tradelink Limited 
  

Sd/- 
 

Sd/- 
 Mahesh Kumar Verma Aushim Khetarpal 

Date:13thAugust 2022 Independent Director Managing Director 
Place: New Delhi DIN: 07892196 DIN: 00060319 
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Annexure II 

FORM NO. AOC-2 
 

(Pursuant to Clause (h) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the company with related parties 
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length 
transactions under third proviso thereto: 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:  
 
Orient Tradelink Limited has not entered into any contract or arrangement or transaction with its related parties 
which is not at arm’s length during financial year 2021-22. 
 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:  
 
For Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis of Orient 
Tradelink Limited for the financial year 2021-22 please refer financial statement. 
 
 
 
                                             For & on behalf of 
 Orient Tradelink Limited 
  

Sd/- 
 

Sd/- 
 Mahesh Kumar Verma Aushim Khetarpal 

Date:13thAugust 2022 Independent Director Managing Director 
Place: New Delhi DIN: 07892196 DIN: 00060319 
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“Annexure III” 

Information of Particulars of employees pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 
5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 

 
S. 
No. 

PARTICULARS REMARKS 

1. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the 
median remuneration of the employees of the company 
for the financial year. 

Aushim Khetarpal (Managing 
Director) – 5.23 
Mahesh Kumar Verma 
(Independent Director) – 1.08 

2 The percentage increase in remuneration of each 
director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive 
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the 
financial year. 

The overall percentage change in 
remuneration of directors is 28.6 %  

3 The percentage increase in the median remuneration of 
employees in the financial year 

- 

4 The number of permanent employees on the rolls of 
company 

5 (Five) 

5 The explanation on the relationship between average 
increase in remuneration and company performance. 

- 

6 Average percentile increase already made in the salaries 
of employees other than the managerial personnel in the 
last financial year and its comparison with the percentile 
increase in the managerial remuneration and 
justification thereof and point out if there are any 
exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial 
remuneration. 

Salary paid to employees during the 
reporting period is 29,00,331/- 
(Rupee Twenty Nine Lakh Three 
Hundred and Thirty One) against 
salary paid in last year was INR 
50,77,007/- (Rupee Fifty Lakh 
Seventy Seven Thousand and 
Seven)  

7 Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the 
remuneration policy of the company 

The Board of Directors affirm that 
the remuneration paid to Directors, 
KMPs and employees is as per the 
Remuneration Policy of the 
Company  
 

 
 
                                             For & on behalf of 
 Orient Tradelink Limited 
  

Sd/- 
 

Sd/- 
 Mahesh Kumar Verma Aushim Khetarpal 

Date:13thAugust 2022 Independent Director Managing Director 
Place: New Delhi DIN: 07892196 DIN: 00060319 
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Annexure- IV 

FORM NO. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31/03/2022 
 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
To, 

The Board, 
Orient Tradelink Limited, 
801-A, 8th Floor, Mahalay Building, 
Behind Fairdeal House, Off: C. G. Road,  
Swastik Cross Roads Navrangpura,  
Ahmedabad, Gujarat-380009. 
 
We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Orient Tradelink Limited (hereinafter called the “Company’). 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and accordingly, expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on our inspection, verification of Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 
and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, We hereby report that in our 
opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 has 
possibly complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2022 according to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under.  
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder; 
(iii) The Depositories Act,1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent 

of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'); 
 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2018; (No transaction has been recorded during the Audit Period) 
d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and sweat equity) 

Regulations, 2021; (No transaction has been recorded during the Audit Period) 
e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993; 
f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 
g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; (No 

transaction has been recorded during the Audit Period) 
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h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018(No transaction 
has been recorded during the Audit Period) 

 
As informed to us the following other laws specifically applicable to the Company as under and as confirmed 
& declared by the management, the Company has duly complied the same:- 

1. The Employees Provident fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 along with labour laws 
2. Employees State Insurance Act, 1948 
3. Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 
4. Payment Gratuity Act, 1972 
5. Factories Act, 1949 
6. Environmental Act, 1986 and its allied applicable laws  

 
We have also examined the compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 
1. Secretarial Standard issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect to board and 
general meetings.  
2. The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited read with the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015  

 
During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, standards etc. mentioned above except in respect of matters specified below: 

Sr. No Compliance Requirement 
(Regulations/ circulars / 
guidelines including specific 
clause) 

Deviations Observations/ Remarks of the 
Practicing Company Secretary 

1. Regulation 76 of the Securities 
and Exchange Board of India 
(Depositories and Participants) 
Regulations, 2018. 

Delay in filing 
Reconciliation of 
Share Capital Audit 
Report for the quarter 
ended December, 
2021 

Submitted on 05th April, 2022  

2.  Regulation 30 & 33 of Securities 
and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 

Current Statutory 
Auditor is non peer 
review. 
 
Approval from 
shareholders is 
pending for 
appointment of 
Statutory Auditor. 

 During the financial year 2021-
2022 company has appointed the 
non- review statuary auditor by 
the audit committee and board of 
company due to casual vacancy 
arise. 

 

 However due to unavoidable 
circumstance company was not 
able to take the approval from 
shareholders within prescribed 
timelines for appointment of 
Auditor. 

 
We further report that: 
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Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and there exist the system for seeking and obtaining further information 
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors 
Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 
furnished to us by the Company & its officers and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India warranted due to the spread of the COVID-19 
pandemic, We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the 
Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority. 

All decisions of the Board were unanimous and the same are captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

We further report that there is scope to improve the systems and processes in the company and operations of 
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

We further report that during the period there were no specific instances / events pursuance of the above 
referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc., having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs except 
the following:  

The company did Consolidation of 5 (Five) Equity Share of the Company having a face value of INR 2/- 
(Rupees Two only) each into 1 (One) Equity Shares of face value of Rs.10/- (Rupees Ten only).  And for the 
approval of same company has filed E-form SH-7 to Registrar of companies, Ahmedabad which was required 
to be filed within 30 days after the approval of members is obtained. But due to inadvertent error this form got 
delayed and the company is in the process of compounding this delay with central government. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: August 13, 2022 
Place: New Delhi 
UDIN: F009192D000801962 

For M/s Vikas Verma & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

(FRN: P2012DE081400) 
 
 

Sd/- 
Vivek Rawal 

Partner 
  Membership No. A43231 

    CP No. 22687 
 
 
*This report is to be read with our letter which is annexed as Annexure-A forming part of an integral 
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Annexure-A  

To,  

The Members,  
Orient Tradelink Limited   
801-A, 8th Floor, Mahalay Building,  
Behind Fairdeal House, Off: C. G. Road,  
Swastik Cross Roads, Navrangpura,  
Ahmedabad, Gujarat- 380009 
 
Our report is to be read along with this letter.  

I. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on this secretarial record based on our audit.   

II. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure 
that correct facts are reflected in secretarial record. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed 
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.   

III. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of the accounts of 
the company.   

IV. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules 
and regulations and happening of events etc.   

V. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.   

VI. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the company nor of the efficacy 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: August 13, 2022 
Place: New Delhi 
UDIN: F009192D000801962 

For M/s Vikas Verma & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

(FRN: P2012DE081400) 
 
 

Sd/- 
Vivek Rawal 

Partner 
  Membership No. A43231 

    CP No. 22687  
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Annexure-V 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

1.  Industry structure and developments 

The Indian Media and Entertainment (M&E) industry is a sunrise sector for the economy and is making 
significant strides. Proving its resilience to the world, Indian M&E industry is on the cusp of a strong phase of 
growth, backed by rising consumer demand and improving advertising revenue. The M&E industry comprises 
businesses that produce, distribute and offer ancillary digital services and products for - Motion Pictures, Video 
& Audio Recordings, Television Programmes and Commercials. It also includes Streaming Content, Music, 
eSports, Broadcast, Radio, and Text and Book Publishing sectors. The industry is backed by a shift in consumer 
preferences and change in demand supported by dynamic technology, innovation, and intense competition 

Over the years, our company has built a strong presence in the market through its cumulative experience, strong 
distribution network as well as sound systems and processes.  

2.  Opportunities and threats 

Being an entertainment company, our company is exposed to specific risks that are particular to its business and 
the environment within which it operates including interest rate volatility, economic cycle, and market risk. 

3. Segment-wise or product-wise performance 

During the year under review, since company is being working in a single segment therefore the specific 
performance does not stand eligible. 

4.  Outlook 

The presence of a stable government at the center will be a major catalyst in taking major decisions which would 
push forward the pace of reforms and thereby directly improving the macro-economic environment. It is now 
being forecasted that in the near future, the Indian economy will become the fastest growing emerging market. 

The Government is looking at easing investment conditions in India and focusing on project clearances. Also, 
2022 is expected to see a rush of foreign direct investments (FDI) coming into India supported by FII inflows, 
thanks to liberalizing the defense, insurance and construction sectors etc. Looking at the Indian economy the 
company has plans to diversify its business in future. 

5. Risks and areas of concern 

Our strength is our determination and team work, weakness is the low equity base, opportunities are multiples 
and threats are the vibrations in the economy and government policies. 

In any business, risks and prospects are inseparable. As a responsible management, the Company’s principal 
endeavor is to maximize returns. The Company continues to take all steps necessary to minimize its expenses 
through detailed studies and interaction with experts. 

6. Internal control systems and their adequacy 

The Company has carried out the internal audit in-house and has ensure that recording and reporting are adequate 
and proper, the internal controls exist in the system and that sufficient measures are taken to update the internal 
control system. The system also ensures that all transaction are appropriately authorized, recorded and reported. 
Exercises for safeguarding assets and protection against unauthorized use are undertaken from time to time. The 
Company's audit Committee reviewed the internal control system. All efforts are being made to make the internal 
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control systems more effective. All these measures are continuously reviewed by the management and as and 
when necessary improvements are affected. 

7. Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance 

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 
and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India. Further, the financial performance during the year under 
reference has been impressive in terms of sales. Even though there has been a decent increase in the turnover, 
the volume of profits has also increased as compared to last year. 

8. Material developments in human resources/industrial relations front, including number of people 
employed. 

The Company had sufficient numbers of employees at its administrative office. The company recognizes the 
importance of human value and ensures that proper encouragement both moral and financial is extended to 
employees to motivate them. The company enjoyed excellent relationship with workers and staff during the last 
year. 

9.  Cautionary Statement 

The statements in the "Management Discussion and Analysis Report" section describes the Company's 
objectives, projections, estimates, expectations and predictions, which may be "forward looking statements" 
within the meaning of the applicable laws and regulations. The annual results can differ materially from those 
expressed or implied, depending upon the economic and climatic conditions, Government policies and other 
incidental factors. 

                                             For & on behalf of 
 Orient Tradelink Limited 
  

Sd/- 
 

Sd/- 
 Mahesh Kumar Verma Aushim Khetarpal 

Date:13thAugust 2022 Independent Director Managing Director 
Place: New Delhi DIN: 07892196 DIN: 00060319 
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‘Annexure – VI’ 

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Corporate Governance is the set of best practices. Corporate governance refers to the set of systems, principles 
and processes by which a Company is governed. They provide the guidelines as to how the Company can be 
directed or controlled such that it can fulfill its goals and objectives in a manner that adds to the value of the 
Company and is also beneficial for all stakeholders in the long term. Stakeholders in this case would include 
everyone ranging from the Board of Directors, management, and shareholders to customers, employees and 
society. The Corporate Governance is a key element in enhancing investor confidence, promoting 
competitiveness and ultimately improving economic growth.  The aim of "Good Corporate Governance" is to 
ensure commitment of the Board in managing the Company in a transparent manner for maximizing long-term 
value of the Company for its shareholders and protection of the rights of the shareholders and your Board of 
Directors are putting their best efforts to fulfill its commitment towards good Corporate Governance.   

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: 

Corporate Governance philosophy stems from our belief that corporate governance is a key element in 
improving efficiency and growth as well as enhancing investor confidence. The Corporate Governance 
philosophy is scripted as:  

"As a good corporate citizen, the Company is committed to sound corporate practices based on conscience, 
openness, fairness, professionalism and accountability in building confidence of its various stakeholders in it 
thereby paving the way for its long term success."   

The Company's philosophy of Corporate Governance is to strengthen the investor's trust and ensures a long-
term partnership that helps in achieving Company's objectives, meeting its obligations towards stakeholders, 
and is guided by a strong emphasis on transparency, accountability, integrity and environment responsibility. 
Our Company's framework is designed to enable the Board to provide strategic guidelines for the Company the 
effective over-sight of management. The respective roles and responsibilities of Board Members and Senior 
Executives are clearly defined to facilitate accountability to Company as well as its shareholders. This ensures 
a balance of authority so that no single individual has unfettered powers.  Our Company has taken adequate 
steps to form various Committees at the Board level to focus attention on crucial issues before placing the same 
before the Board for consideration. These include 'Audit Committee' and 'Shareholders/Investors Grievance 
Committee' Independent Directors are appointed not merely to fulfill the listing requirement but for their diverse 
skills, experience and external objectivity that they bring to effectively perform their role to provide strategic 
direction and guidance and provide constructive support to management by asking the right questions and 
generating quality debates and discussions on major decisions.  

MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: The Board of Directors is the apex body constituted by shareholders, for 
overseeing the Company’s overall functioning. It provides strategic direction, leadership and guidance to the 
Company’s management as also monitors the performance of the Company with the objective of creating long-
term value for the Company’s stakeholders.  

I. CATEGORY AND COMPOSITION 

In compliance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the 
Company has a balanced mix of executive, non- executive and Independent Directors. As on date of this report, 
the Board of Directors consists of 4 (Four) Directors, out of which 1 is Executive Director, 1 Non- Executive 
Non Independent director and 2 are Non- Executive Independent Directors. Except the Independent Director, 
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all other Directors are liable to retire by rotation as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. In compliance 
with Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, half of 
the Board comprises of independent directors. 

During the year under review, 6 (Six) Board Meetings were held on June 28, 2021, August 12, 2021, November 
12, 2021, February 12, 2022, February 15, 2022 and March 29, 2022. 

The following table, illustrates the composition of the Board, Director’s attendance at Board Meetings held 
during the financial year under review and at the last AGM, number of Directorships held in other public 
companies, total number of committee positions held in other public companies, and names of other listed 
entities in which Directorship is held, including category of Directorships, as at March 31, 2022. 

Name of Director & 
DIN 

Category No. of Board 
Meetings 
attended 
during the 
year 

Attendance 
at last 
AGM 

No. of 
Directorship 
in other 
Companies 

No. of 
Committee 
position in 
other public 
Companies 

Aushim Khetarpal 
DIN: 00060319 

Managing 
Director 

6 Yes 4 - 

Mahesh Kumar Verma 
DIN: 07892196 

Independent 
Director 

6 Yes 2 - 

Balakrishna Ramarao 
Maddur 
DIN: 00899838 

Independent 
Director 

6 Yes 2 - 

Sunny Panwar 
DIN: 09091045 
(Resigned on September 
28, 2021) 

Independent 
Director 

2 No - - 

Rachna Narula 
DIN: 06920054 
(Resigned on September 
28, 2021) 

Director 2 No - - 

Rachna Panwar 
DIN: 09492441 
(Appointed on February 
15, 2022) 

Director 2 No - - 

 

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

The Company’s Independent Directors met once during the financial year 2021-22 on March 14, 2022. Such 
meeting was conducted to enable the Independent Directors to discuss matters pertaining to the Company’s 
affairs and put forth their views as well as on matters prescribed under Schedule IV of the Act. 

COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS:  

Given below is the composition and the terms of reference of various Board constituted Committees, inter alia 
including the details of meetings held during the year and attendance thereat. All Committee decisions are taken, 
either at the meetings of the Committee or by passing of circular resolutions. The Company Secretary acts as 
the secretary for all Board constituted Committees.  
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AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

The Audit Committee functions according to its Charter that defines its composition, authority, responsibility 
and reporting functions in accordance with Section 177 of the Act, Regulation 18(3) read with Part C of Schedule 
II of the SEBI Listing Regulations and US regulations applicable to the Company and is reviewed from time to 
time. Whilst, the terms of reference is available on the Company’s website 
https://www.orienttradelink.in/management-policies.htm, given below is a gist of the responsibilities of the 
Audit Committee, after incorporating therein the regulatory changes mandated under the Listing Regulation: 

i. Reviewing with the management, quarterly/annual financial statements before submission to the Board, 
focusing primarily on: 
 

 The Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information, including 
earnings, press release, to ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible; 

 Reports on the Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition, results of Operations and 
the Directors’ Responsibility Statement; 

 Major accounting entries involving estimates based on exercise of judgment by Management; 

 Compliance with accounting standards and changes in accounting policies and practices as well as 
reasons thereof; 

 Draft Audit Report, qualifications, if any and significant adjustments arising out of audit; 
 Scrutinise inter corporate loans and investments; and; 

 Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions with related parties, including omnibus related 
party transactions. 
 

ii. Review the statement of uses/applications of funds by major category and the statement of funds utilized 
for purposes other than as mentioned in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted 
by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights or private 
placement issue, and make appropriate recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter. 
These reviews are to be conducted till the money raised through the issue has been fully spent. 
 

iii. Review with the management, statutory auditor and internal auditor, adequacy of internal control 
systems, identify weakness or deficiencies and recommending improvements to the management. 

 
iv. Recommend the appointment/removal of the statutory auditor, cost auditor, fixing audit fees and 

approving nonaudit/consulting services provided by the statutory auditors’ firms to the Company and 
its subsidiaries; evaluating auditors’ performance, qualifications, experience, independence and pending 
proceedings relating to professional misconduct, if any. 

 
v. Review the adequacy of internal audit function, including the structure of the internal audit department, 

staffing and seniority of the chief internal auditor, coverage and frequency of internal audit, 
appointment, removal, performance and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor. 

 
vi. Discuss with the internal auditor and senior management, significant internal audit findings and follow-

up thereon. 
 

vii. Review the findings of any internal investigation into matters involving suspected fraud or irregularity 
or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and report the matter to the Board. 

 
viii. Discuss with the statutory auditor before the audit commences, the nature and scope of audit, as well as 

conduct post-audit discussions to ascertain any area of concern. 
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ix. Review the functioning of the Vigil Mechanism under the Whistle-Blower policy of the Company. 

 
x. Review the financial statements and investments made by subsidiary companies and subsidiary 

oversight relating to areas such as adequacy of the internal audit structure and function of the 
subsidiaries, their status of audit plan and its execution, key internal audit observations, risk 
management and the control environment. 

 
xi. Look into reasons for any substantial defaults in payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 

shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividend) and creditors, if any. 
 

xii. Review the effectiveness of the system for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations. 
 

xiii. Approve the appointment of CFO after assessing the qualification, experience and background etc. of 
the candidate. 

 
xiv. To approve and review policies in relation to the implementation of the Tata Code of Conduct for 

Prevention of Insider Trading and Code of Corporate Disclosure Practices (”Code”) to note the dealings 
by Designated Persons in securities of the Company and to provide directions on any penal action to be 
initiated, in case of any violation of the Code. 

 
As on date of this report, the Committee comprises 3 (Three) members, all being IDs, who are financially literate 
and have relevant finance and/or audit exposure. During the period under review, 5 (Five) Audit Committee 
Meetings were held on June 28, 2021, August 12, 2021, November 10, 2021, November 12, 2021 and February 
12, 2022. 
 
The composition of the Audit Committee and attendance of its Members at its meetings held during the year is 
as follows: 
 

Name of Member Category No. of meetings held 
during the year 

No. of meetings 
attended 

Mahesh Kumar Verma Chairperson 5 5 
Balakrishna Ramarao 
Maddur 

Member 5 5 

Sunny Panwar 
(Resigned on 
September 28, 2021) 

Member 5 1 

Aushim Khetarpal Member 5 3 
 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

 
The NRC of the Company functions according to its terms of reference, that defines its objective, composition, 
meeting requirements, authority and power, responsibilities, reporting and evaluation functions in accordance 
with Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 
The suitably revised terms of reference enumerated in the Committee Charter, after incorporating therein the 
regulatory changes mandated under the SEBI Listing Regulations, are as follows: 

 Recommend the set up and composition of the Board and its Committees including the “formulation of the 
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director”. The Committee 
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periodically reviews the composition of the Board with the objective of achieving an optimum balance of 
size, skills, independence, knowledge, age, gender and experience. 

 Support the Board in matters related to the setup, review and refresh of the Committees. 

 Devise and review a policy on Board diversity. 

 Recommend the appointment / reappointment or removal of Directors, in accordance with the criteria laid 
down, including IDs on the basis of their performance evaluation report. 

 Identify and recommend to the Board appointment or removal of Key Managerial Personnel (’KMP’) and 
Senior Management of the Company in accordance with the criteria laid down. In case of appointment of 
CFO the Committee shall identify persons, to the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors of the 
Company. 

 Carry out evaluation of every Director’s performance and support the Board, its Committees and individual 
Directors, including “formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board” 

 Oversee the performance review process for the KMP and Senior Management of the Company with a view 
that there is an appropriate cascading of Company’s goals and targets and on an annual basis, review the 
performance of the Directors, KMP and Senior Management and recommend their remuneration. 

 Recommend the Remuneration Policy for Directors, KMP, Senior Management and other employees. 
 

As on date of this report the Committee comprises 2 Independent Director and 1 Non-Executive (Non-
Independent) Director. The Chairperson of the NRC also attended the last Annual General Meeting of the 
Company. During the period under review, 2 NRC meetings were held on August 12, 2021 and February 15, 
2022. The requisite quorum was present for all the meetings. 
 
The composition of the NRC and attendance of its Members at its meetings held during the year is as follows: 
 

Name of Member Category No. of Meeting held 
during the year 

No. of meeting 
attended 

Mahesh Kumar Verma Chairman  2 2 
Balakrishna Ramarao Maddur Member 2 2 
Sunny Panwar 
(Resigned on September 28, 2021) 

Member 2 1 

Aushim Khetarpal 
(Appointed on October 11, 2021 and 
resigned on February 15, 2022) 

Member 2 1 

Rachna Panwar 
(Appointed on February 15, 2022)  

Member 2 - 

 
The performance evaluation criteria for Non-Executive Directors, including IDs, is determined by the NRC. An 
indicative list of factors that were evaluated include participation and contribution by a director, commitment, 
effective deployment of knowledge and expertise, effective management of relationship with stakeholders, role 
in Board constituted committees, integrity and maintenance of confidentiality and independence of behavior and 
judgment. 
 
STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE (‘SRC’) 
 
The SRC functions in accordance with Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 20 read with Part D of Schedule 
II of the SEBI Listing Regulations. The suitably revised terms of reference enumerated in the Committee 
Charter, after incorporating therein the regulatory changes mandated under the SEBI Listing Regulations, are as 
follows: 

61



 

 
 

 Approve issue of duplicate certificates for securities and transmission of securities. 

 Resolve grievances of security holders of the Company, including complaints related to 
transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of 
new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc. 

 Review measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders. 

 Review adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services being 
rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. 

 Review various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed 
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the 
Shareholders of the Company. 

 Carry out any other function as is referred by the Board from time to time or enforced by any statutory 
notification / amendment or modification as may be applicable. 

As on date of this report, the Committee comprises 2 Independent Directors and Non-Executive (Non 
Independent) Director. The Chairperson of the SRC also attended the last Annual General Meeting of the 
Company. During the period under review, 1 SRC meetings were held on February 12, 2022. The requisite 
quorum was present for all the meetings. 
 
The composition of the SRC and attendance of its Members at its meetings held during the year is as follows: 

Name of the Member Category No. of meetings held 
during the year 

No. of meetings 
attended 

Mahesh Kumar Verma Chairman 1 1 
Balakrishna Ramarao 
Maddur 

Member 1 1 

Sunny Panwar 
(Resigned on 
September 28, 2021) 

Member 1 - 

Aushim Khetarpal 
(Appointed on October 
11, 2021 and resigned 
on February 15, 2022) 

Member 1 1 

Rachna Panwar 
(Appointed on February 
15, 2022)  

Member 1 - 

 
COMPLIANCE OFFICER OF THE COMPANY:  
 
Mr. Akash Toshniwal, Company Secretary is the Compliance Officer for complying with the requirements of 
the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 & SEBI (LODR), 
Regulation, 2015 and is responsible for complying with the requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges.  
 
CODE OF CONDUCT: 
 
The Board of the Company has laid down Code of Conduct for all the Board members of the Company and 
Senior Management as well and the same has been posted on Website of the Company. Annual Compliance 
Report for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been received from all the Board members and senior management 
of the Company regarding the compliance of all the provisions of Code of Conduct. Declaration regarding 
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compliance by Board members and senior management personnel with the Company's Code of Conduct is 
hereby attached as annexure to this report. 

 
MATERIAL NON-LISTED SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES: 
 
SEBI (LODR), Regulation, 2015 defines a 'material non-listed Indian subsidiary' as an unlisted subsidiary, 
incorporated in India, whose turnover or net worth (i.e. paid-up capital and free reserves) exceeds 20% of the 
consolidated turnover or net worth respectively, of the listed holding Company and its subsidiaries in the 
immediately preceding accounting year.  
 
The Company does not have any such subsidiary during the accounting year under review.   
 
GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 
 
Annual General Meetings: 
 

Date of AGM  Year Special Resolution Passed Venue 
September 30, 2019 at 
10:00 AM 

2018-19  Appointment of Ms. Rasida 
Khatun as an Independent 
Director 

 Appointment of Mr. 
Balakrishna Maddur Ramarao 
as an Independent Director 

 To Appoint Anish 
Vinodchandra Shah as Director 

 To appoint Statutory Auditors 
to fill the casual vacancy 

 To appoint Statutory Auditors 
of the Company and fix their 
remuneration 

 To Re-appoint Mr. Aushim 
Khetarpal as Managing Director 

Hotel Comfort Inn President, 
Opposite Municipal Market, 
Swastik Cross Roads, 
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad- 
380009 

30th September, 2020 
At 3:00 PM 

2019-20  Shifting of registered office 

 Consolidation of share 

 Issue of share by way of 
preferential issue 

 Modification in T&C of loan 
taken by company from its 
Managing director 

Due to COVID-19 Virus 
Pandemic held through video 
conferencing (‘VC’) /other 
audio visual means (‘OAVM’)  

September 28, 2021 2020-21  Shifting of registered office of 
the company 

Due to COVID-19 Virus 
Pandemic held through video 
conferencing (‘VC’) /other 
audio visual means (‘OAVM’) 

 
There were no special resolutions proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot during FY 2021-22 or at the 
forthcoming AGM. 
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All resolutions moved at the last years’ AGM, were passed by means of electronic voting, by the requisite 
majority of members. 
 
MEANS OF COMMUNICATIONS:  
 
The Company recognizes communication as a key element to the overall Corporate Governance framework, and 
therefore emphasizes on prompt, continuous, efficient and relevant communication to all external constituencies.  
 
Financial Results: The Quarterly, Half Yearly and Annual Results are regularly submitted to the BSE Limited 
(BSE) as well as uploaded on the Company’s website and are published in newspapers, namely the Financial 
Express and Financial Express (Gujrati). 
 
Additionally, the results and other important information are also periodically updated on the Company’s 
website www.orienttradelink.in.  
 
Website: The Company’s website is a comprehensive reference on its leadership, management, vision, policies, 
corporate governance, sustainability and investor relations. The Members can access the details of the Board, 
the Committees, Policies, Board committee Charters, financial information, statutory filings. In addition, various 
downloadable forms required to be executed by the shareholders have also been provided on the website of the 
Company. 
 
Annual Report: The information regarding the performance of the Company is shared with the shareholders 
vide the Annual Report. The Annual Reports for FY 2021-22 are being sent in electronic mode, to all members 
who have registered their email ids for the purpose of receiving documents / communication in electronic mode 
with the Company and / or Depository Participants. The Annual Reports are also available in the Company’s 
website www.orienttradelink.in.  
 
Electronic Communication: The Company had during FY 2021-22 sent various communications including 
Annual Reports, by email to those shareholders whose email addresses were registered with the Company / 
Depositories. In support of the ‘Green Initiative’ the Company encourages Members to register their email 
address with their Depository Participant or the Company, to receive soft copies of the Annual Report, Notices 
and other information disseminated by the Company, on a real-time basis without any delay. 
 
Scores: A centralised web based complaints redress system ‘Scores’ which serves as a centralised database of 
all complaints received, enables uploading of Action Taken Reports by the concerned companies and online 
viewing by the investors of actions taken on complaint and its current status. 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS: 
 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING: 
 

Date and Time: Friday, September30, 2022 
Venue: In view of the continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 

and SEBI vide its relevant circulars, has permitted the holding of the Annual 
General Meeting through video-conferencing / other audio visual means (‘VC / 
OAVM’), without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In 
compliance with the provisions of the Act, MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, the 
AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM. 

 
As required under Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standards 2 on General 
Meetings, details of Director seeking appointment / re-appointment at this AGM are given in the Annexure to 
the Notice of the forthcoming AGM. 
 
FINANCIAL YEAR: Ending March 31 
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LISTINGS 
 

The Company’s shares are listed on the BSE Ltd. (BSE). The following are the details of the Company’s shares: 
 

Type Equity Shares 

ISIN INE681D01039 

Scrip Code 531512 
Symbol ORIENTTR 

 
MARKET INFORMATION 
 
Market price data - monthly high/low of the closing price and trading volumes on BSE depicting liquidity of the 
Company’s Ordinary Shares on the said exchanges is given hereunder:- 
 

Month High Price Low Price No. of Shares No. of Trades 
Apr-21 8.22 4.71 24439 232 

May-21 4.72 4.12 190942 844 

Jun-21 7.15 4.2 651796 1573 

Jul-21 6.75 5.39 335318 1093 

Aug-21 8.49 5.95 472736 1589 

Sep-21 7.39 5.5 209828 816 

Oct-21 6.45 5.3 290439 874 

Nov-21 9.98 4.8 676399 2126 

Dec-21 11.86 6.91 931559 3930 

Jan-22 10.2 7.5 819666 3624 

Feb-22 9.03 7.34 395092 1366 

Mar-22 8.29 6.12 294970 1046 
 
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENTS 
 
In order to expedite the process of shares transfers, the Board has appointed Skyline Financial Private Limited 
as Share Transfer Agent and register of the Company. The transfer agent will generally attend to the transfer 
formalities once in a fortnight and operate subject to the overall supervision of Shareholders/ Investor 
Grievances Committee. 
 
In compliance with the Listing Guidelines, every six months, the Share Transfer System is audited by a Company 
Secretary in practice and a certificate to that effect is issued by them. 
 
STATUTORY DISCLOSURES: 
 
No transactions of material nature have been entered into by the Company with any of the promoters, Directors, 
their related companies, firms, subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have a potential conflict with interest of the 
Company. The Company has not been penalized, nor have any strictures been passed by the Stock Exchanges, 
SEBI etc.  
 
NO DISQUALIFICATION CERTIFICATE FROM COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE 
 
The Company has obtained a Certificate from M/s. Vikas Verma and Associates, Company 
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Secretaries confirming that none of the Directors on the board of the Company have been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the Board/Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority, as stipulated under Regulation 34 (3) of SEBI 
(LODR) which forms part of this Report as Annexure - A. 
 
DISCLOSURES: 
 
The Board of Directors receives from time to time disclosures relating to financial and commercial transactions 
from key managerial personnel of the Company where they and /or their relatives have personal interest. There 
are no materially significant related party transactions, which have potential conflict with the interest of the 
Company at large. 
 
The details of the related party Related Party Transaction are placed before the audit committee as well as to the 
Board of Directors in terms of applicable laws for approval. 
 
RISK MANAGEMENT  
 
The Company has in place a Risk Management policy, which lays down a robust and dynamic process for 
identification and mitigation of risks. This policy has been adopted by the Audit Committee as well as the Board 
of Directors of the Company. The Audit Committee reviews the management and mitigation plan from time to 
time. 
 
DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES AND LIQUIDITY 
 
The Company shares are traded in dematerialized form and have to be delivered in the dematerialized form to 
the stock exchange. To enable that shareholders have an easy access to the Demat system, the company has 
executed agreements with both Depositories viz. National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central 
Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). The company has appointed M/s Skyline Financial Services 
Private Limited, Registrar for the purpose of electronic connectivity as well as for physical mode of transfer of 
shares.  
 
ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE 
 
Corporate Office: 
 
141A, Ground Floor, Shahpur Jat, New Delhi-110049  
Website: www.orienttradelink.in  
 
ADDRESS OF THE REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT: 
 
Skyline Financial Services Private Limited  
D-153, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area,  
Phase – 1, New Delhi – 110 020  
Telephone: 011-64732681-88 
 
DECLARATION 
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None of the Director of the Company is a Director (including any alternate directorship) of more than 20 
Companies as per the provisions of Section 165 of the Companies Act, 2013 and member of more than 10 
committees or Chairman of more than 5 committees across all companies in which he is a Director.   
 
RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT REPORT 
 
To reconcile the total admitted capital with NSDL & CDSL and the total issue and listed capital, A 
Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Report under Regulation 76 of Depository Participants Act, is carried out 
by a Company Secretary in Practice on Quarterly basis. 

 
 

For Orient Tradelink Limited 

Sd/- 
Aushim Khetarpal 
Managing Director 
Date: 13th August, 2021 
Place: New Delhi 
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DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT 

This is to confirm that the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the Managing 
Director. The Code of Conduct as adopted is available on the Company's website. I confirm that the Company 
has in respect of the Financial Year ended March 31, 2022, received from the Senior Management team of the 
Company and the members of the Board, a declaration of Compliance with the Code of Conduct as applicable 
to them.  

For Orient Tradelink Limited 

Sd/- 
Aushim Khetarpal 
Managing Director 
Date: 13th August, 2021 
Place: New Delhi 
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CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND CASH FLOW 
STATEMENT (PURSUANT TO REGULATION 17 (8) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS & 

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS), REGULATIONS, 2015 FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 
ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 

 
We have reviewed the Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2022 
and we hereby certify and confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief the following: 

a. The Financial Statements and Cash Flow statement do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit 
any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading.  

b. The Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement together present a true and fair view of the affairs of 
the Company and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.  

c. There are no transactions entered in to by the Company during the year ended 31st March 2022 which are 
fraudulent, illegal or violative of Company’s Code of Conduct.  

d. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for Financial Reporting and we 
have evaluated the effectiveness of these internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial 
reporting. Deficiencies noted, if any, are discussed with the Auditors and Audit Committee, as appropriate, and 
suitable actions are taken to rectify the same.  

e. There have been no significant changes in the above-mentioned internal controls over financial reporting 
during the relevant period.  

f. That there have been no significant changes in the accounting policies during the relevant period.  

g. We have not noticed any significant fraud particularly those involving the, management or an employee 
having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over Financial Reporting. 

For Orient Tradelink Limited 

Sd/- 
Aushim Khetarpal 
CFO 
Date: 13th August, 2022 
Place: New Delhi  
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PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARIES’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

To  

The Members of  
Orient Tradelink Limited 
801-A, 8th Floor, Mahalay Building,  
Behind Fairdeal House, C. G. Road,   
Swastik Cross Roads, Navrangpura,   
Ahmedabad, GJ-380009   
 

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Orient Tradelink Limited for 
the year ended 31st March, 2022 as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) and (t) of sub-
regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D & E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”). 

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our 
examination was limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by the Company 
for ensuring compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of 
opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and the 
representations made by the Directors and the Management and considering the relaxations granted by the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and Exchange Board of India warranted due to the spread of the 
COVID-19 pandemic, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance 
as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations for the year ended on March 31, 2022 except that during the year 
Mr. Sunny Panwar, Non-Executive (Non Independent) Director resigned from the post of director after that  

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: August 13, 2022 
Place: New Delhi 
UDIN: F009192D000918837 

For M/s Vikas Verma & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

(FRN: P2012DE081400) 
 
 

Sd/- 
Vivek Rawal 

Partner 
  Membership No. A43231 

    CP No. 22687  
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Annexure-A 
To  

The Members of  
Orient Tradelink Limited 
801-A, 8th Floor, Mahalay Building,  
Behind Fairdeal House, C. G. Road,   
Swastik Cross Roads, Navrangpura,   
Ahmedabad, GJ-380009   
 
Dear Sir, 
 
Sub: Certificate pursuant to Clause 10(i) of Part C of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
 
Orient Tradelink Limited (CIN: L65910GJ1994PLC022833) (“the Company”), a Listed Public Limited Company 
incorporated under the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956 whose equity shares are listed on the BSE 
Limited (“BSE”), has approached us to issue certificate confirming that none of the directors on the Board of the 
Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as director of the Company by the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI or Board)/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority 
and based on the individual confirmations received from the Board of Directors of the Company who were in their 
respective office as on March 31, 2022 viz. 
 

S. No. Name of the Director DIN 

1 Mr. Aushim Khetarpal 00060319 

2 Mr. Balakrishna Ramarao Maddur 00899838 

3 Mr. Mahesh Kumar Verma 07892196 

4 Ms. Rachna Panwar 09492441 

 
and we certify that, none of the directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being 
appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory 
authority. 
 
This certificate is issued by us only for the purpose of disclosure to be furnished in the Corporate Governance Report 
of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022, pursuant to Clause 10(i) of Part C of Schedule V of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and should not be used for any other 
purpose. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: September 13, 2022 
Place: New Delhi 
UDIN: F009192D000918771 

For M/s Vikas Verma & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

(FRN: P2012DE081400) 
 
 

Sd/- 
Vivek Rawal 

Partner 
  Membership No. A43231 

    CP No. 22687 
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Satish Kum a dh 
B. Com F.C.A. 

Chartered Accountant 

D-602. lbiza Town, Suraj Kund, 
Faridabad Haryana -121009 

M.: +91-9871075250 

Email : ca.satishgaddh@gmail.carn 

-----·-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of 

ORIENT TRADELINK LIMITED 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ORIENT TRADELINK 
LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2022, 
and the statement of Profit and Loss and statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the 

Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of 
affairs of the Company as at March 3 1, 2022, and its profit/loss, and its cash flows 
for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Ind ia together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the 
financial statement. 
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Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a 
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide separate opinion 
on these matters. Following are our observations:-

a) The company had delayed in filling of GST Retums, no provision had been 
made for penalty and interest for delayed payment, no provision had been 
made for input reversal and for non-payment to vendors within 180 days 
as per section 16(2) of CGST Act had not been made. The company had 
not complied provisions of Rule 36(4) of the CGST Act and had claimed ITC 
in violation of the said rule. 

b) The company had not complied with the provisions of TDS Laws and no 
provision had been made for penalty and interest for delayed and non­
compliance. 

c) Inventory, balances of debtors, creditors, valuation of Intangible Assets 
and their amortisation there off reported in Financial statement is as 
certified by the management. 

How the key matters is addressed in our audit 

Our audit procedures on key matters includes the following: 

• Obtained the outstanding litigations list as compared to the previous year. 
Enquired and obtained explanations for movement in litigations during the 
year. 

• Inquired with management regarding the status of significant litigations and 
claims including obtaining legal teams views on the likely outcome of each 
litigations and claim and the magnitude of potential exposure. 

• Examined the Company's legal expenses and read the minutes of Board 
meetings, to evaluate the completeness of list of the open litigations. 

• Read the latest correspondence between the Company and tax/legal 
authorities and reviewed legal opinions obtained by management, where 
applicable, for significant matters and considered the same in evaluating the 
appropriateness of the Company's Provisions or disclosure of contingent 
Liabilities 

• With respect to tax matters , we involved tax specialists to evaluate the 
significant cases and the technical grounds for Management's conclusions on 
provisions or disclosure of contingent liabilities 

• For non-tax matters, we evaluated Management's decisions and rationale for 
provisions established or disclosure made for contingent liabilities. 
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Other Information: 

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Company·s annual Report, but does not included in the fmancial statements and 
our auditor's report thereon. The Company' s annual report is expected to be m a de 
available to us after the date of this auditor·s report. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we 
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In conn ection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information identified above when it becomes available and in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the fmancial 
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
th ere is a material misstatements of this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Management's and Board of Director's Responsibilities for the Financial 
Statement 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 
134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("th e Act") with respect to the preparation of these 
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/ loss 
and other compreh ensive income and cash flow of the Company in accordance with 
the accounting principles gen erally accepted in India, including the accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting r ecords, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
fmancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the fmancial statements, th e Management and Board of Directors are 
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as a pplicable , m atters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's fmancial 
reporting process. 
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

:,. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the fmancial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

};> Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) 
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
fmancial statement system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls. 

).- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management and Board 
of Director. 

,. Conclude on the appropriateness of management and Board of Director use of the 
going concern basis of accounting in preparation of financial statement and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertrunty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in 
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date 
of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

r Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements 

....,-=.-~present the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
g{_-;;.· ~sentation . 

ff~.:1? · ·' \ 
1/'f~ n+' . ' )~-i !j 
\\":~· .Jl ,., .' .1 ~· 1, 
,,· .. .'·-..f 
~\ ...... -;,.,_ ........ -- ' ~ ',_ 

·-':J ·~ , 
"·-:. -- . 

75



We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 

matters , the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings , 
including any significant deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during our 
audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those ch a rged with governance, we determine 
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the current p eriod and are therefore the key audit matters. We 
describe these matters in our auditor 's report unless law or regulation precludes 
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we 
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor 's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), 
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section ( 11) of 
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure A" a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 
extent applicable. 

2. A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 
audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by 
the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss,(including other 
comprehensive income), and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the books of account . 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the 

Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 20 14. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 
31st March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being appointed as a 

.;_ director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 
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f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls , 
refer to our separate Report in "Annexure B". Our report expresses a n 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 
company' s internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules , 2014, 
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to u s : 

a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial 
position in its financial statements. Refer Note to the financial statement. 

b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

c) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

C. With respect matters to be included in the Auditor's Report under section 197{16) of the 
Act, 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid 
to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the 
Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under 
Sectionl97(16) oftht!fe A~''are required to be commented upon by us. 
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CA Satish Kumar Gaddh 
(Chartered Accountant) 
Membership No- 009641 
Date: 31/05/2022 
Place: New Delhi 
UDIN: -22009641AMSDNV3839 
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Satish Kum~ - .d 
B. Com F.C.A. 

Chartered Accountant 

An Annexure "A" to the Auditor's Report 

D-602, lbiza Town, Suraj Kund, 
Faridabad Haryana -121009 

M.: +91-9871075250 

Email: ca.satishgaddh@gmail.com 

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors' Report to the members of the 
Company on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, we report 
that: 

1. In respect of its fixed assets: 
a. {A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, 

including quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and 
equipment. 
{B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars 
of Intangible assets. 

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 
of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a 
regular programme of physical verification of its Property, plant and 
equipment by which all Property, pla nt and equipment are verified in a 
phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this 

programme, certain Property, plant and equipment were verified during 
the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is 
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its 
assets . No material discrepancies were noticed on su ch verification. 

c . According to the information and explanations given to us and on the 
basis of our examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of 
immovable properties {other than immovable properties where the 
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in 
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the 
name of the Company. 

d. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 
of our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not 
revalued its Property, plant and equipment (including Right-of-use assets) 
or Inta n gible assets or both during the year. 

e. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis 
of our examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings 
initiated or pending against the Compa ny for holding any benami property 
under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules 
made thereunder. 
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11. In respect of its inventories: 

a. The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. 
In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures 
and coverage as followed by management were appropriate. No discrepancies 
were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records 
that were 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory. 

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been 
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, 
from banks on the basis of security of current assets. Thus, paragraph 3(ii)(b) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

111. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any 
investments, provided guarantee or security or granted any loan or advances in 
the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms , limited liability 
partnerships or any other parties during the year. Thus, paragraph 3(iii)(a) to (f) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

1v. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
examination of the records, the Company has complied with the provisions of 
Section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans given, investments made, 
guarantees and securities given. 

v. The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning 
of the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India, provisions of Section 73 to 
76 of the Act, any other r elevant provisions of the Act and the relevant rules framed 
there under. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable. 

v1. According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central 
Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the products manufactured by it (and/ or 
services provided by it) . Accordingly, clause 3 (vi) of the Order is not applicable. 

vii. In respect of statutory dues: 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued 
in th e books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including 
Good s & Services Tax , Provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income­
tax, sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Customs, duty of excise , value added tax, L ;~.--':::-~~ss and other material statu tory dues have generally been regularly 
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Collected at source (TCS) , during the year by the Company with the 
appropriate authorities. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed 
amounts payable in respect of Goods & Services Tax , Provident fund, 
Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of 
Customs, duty of excise, value added tax, Cess and other material statutory 

dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 except for the instance of Tax 
Deducted at source (TDS), for a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable. 

vm. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not 
surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in 
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as 
income during th e year. 

ix. 

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company did not have 
any loans or borrowings from any lender during the year. Accordingly, clause 
3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been 
declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government 
or government authority. 

(c) According to the information and explanations. given to us by the 
management, the Company h as not obtained any term loans. Accordingly, 
clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds 
have been raised on short-term basis by the Company. Accordingly, clause 
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall 
examination of the financial statements of the Company, we report that the 
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or 
to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries as defmed under the Companies Act, 
2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures 
per~ormed by us, we report that the Company has not raised loans during the 
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X. 

XI. 

year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries as defined under the 
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not 
a pplicable. 

(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us , 
the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further 
public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of 
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made 
any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order 
is not applicable. 

(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and 
according to the information and explanations given to us, considering the 
principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that 
no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported 
during the course of the audit. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under 
sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed 
by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. 

(c) We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by 
the Company during the year while determining the nature, timing and 
extent of our audit procedures. 

xu. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties 
are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and 
details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as 
required by the applicable accounting standards. 

XlV . 

(a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, 
in our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with 
the size and nature of its business. 
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(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for 
th e period under audit. 

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or 
persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company. 

XVI. 

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934 . Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable. 

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934.Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order isnot 
applicable. 

(c) The Company 1s not a Core Investmen t Company (CIC) as defined in the 
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of 
the Order is not applicable. 

(d) According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course 
of audit, the Group does not h ave any CIC. Accordin gly, the requirements of 
clause 3(xvi)(d) are not applicable. 

XVlL The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately 
preceding financial year. 

xvm . According to the information and explana tions given to us and based on our 
examination of the records of the Company outgoing auditor has not raised any 
objections or concerns. 

X1X. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the 
financial ratios , ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and 
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assump tions, nothing 
has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not 
capable of m eeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 
they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, 
state tha t this is not an assurance a s to the future viability of the Company. We 
further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities 
J~~ due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get 

.{ .. '{llsch~d by the Company as and when they fall due. 

:~v;-: o~ot, 1 )~\.~ 
'·~~· ~II 
'\"~ ·.~ )'.... ...<" ),'""''· 
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xx. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 
is no unspent amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 
2013 pursuant to_ any pro~ccordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the 
Order are not apphcab~./ · 

v 11;;
1

, f; '·~.\ 
. . ~I' 

~ c<e-1 ~ \ ~. j /~ ;i , · ' ,,,,. ,, 
'~~ 1,. ., _ __... , ·, / 

. ':1 ... ,.. v -; 

CA Satish Kumar Gaddh ~--
(Chartered Accountant) 
Membership No- 009641 
Date: 30/05/2022 
Place: New Delhi 
UDIN: -22009641AMSDNV3839 
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Satish Kum< 
B. Com F.C.A. 

Chartered Accountant 

D-602, lbiza Town. Suraj Kund, 
Faridabad Haryana -121009 

M.: +91-9871075250 

Email : ca.satishgaddh@gmail.com 

Annexure: B" to the Independent Auditor's Report 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to aforesaid financial statement 

under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' 
sec tion of our report of even date) 

Opinion 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ORIENT 
TRADELINK LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31 , 2022 in conjunction with our audit 
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls 
with reference to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls were 
operating effectively as at 3 1 March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (the Guidance Note"). 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls with reference to financial statement based on the 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
s ta ted in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors , the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statement based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance 

with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under section 143( 1 0) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an 
audit of internal financial controls with reference to finan cial statement. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all materia l respects. 

Our a udit involves perfori?J.~rocedures to obtain audit evidence about the a dequacy of the 
internal financial co OJs -;\Ytl;n reference to financial statements and their operating 

I~-."'~- '~. -~ '\ 
"<''{ • \~). • I " ' 
':J) ' '• . c: !I 
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effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 

of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficien t and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over 
financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process 
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 
th e preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to 
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 

maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures 
of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that 
could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls , material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 

financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

~ 
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i'f 
CA Satish Kumar Gaddh - -~~ 
(Chartered Accountant) 
Membership No- 009641 
Date: 30/05/2022 
Place: New Delhi 
UDIN: -22009641AMSDNV3839 
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Orient Trodclink Ltd. 
CIN- L65910G)19941'LC022833 

- 801- A, ~ loho loyo Uuilding ,Uchiml Foirdcol Housc,Of(: C.G. Road , Swastik Cross l(oods, 
Non rangpura , Ahmedabad Cj 380009 IN 

lla lancc Sheet as at 31st ~ l arch '2022 

(AIIIOIIIII ill Lnk/ts) 

Part icu l:~ rs Note No. As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021 

I. l'quily and Liahilitic; 
(1) Sh.tr~hnldc"' fum!' 
(d)~hrtr\1 1.<\ 'ilr\1 1 .1.096.50 / 1,096.50 
'b) RP~ .. r\'f'\ fllld surplu~ 1 (87.80 (142.5~ 
(<" I ~lont•, H'tf'i\.t1d dgl'linst sh.tn· '' ,u rt~nt:> 

(2) Shan.~ application mcmt:-\' pending allotment 

(~) 1'\'on-currl•nt liAhilith.1., 
ct} Louv.~term l"u rcm:uh,., ~ 323.27 / 302.41 

(h Oef~rrt>tlt•• li•hiliti<'' ().<•t} 1tl1l 62.58 , 45.80 

(4) Current lia l•ilitic' 
;t) Short~tt>rtll hc.•now infs 
l•) Tr•<l~ P•' •l•les-· 4 
J\ ) tota outst.1nom~" u •. .., o m •fro ~o.'r't<'rpnw'> ,tnC1 c;mttlll'ntcrpnSllS; ~uh.J 2,445.46 2,535.04 
(I~} to t.l out,tam mr. t u~tO of rrr. lhlr<t Nnrr 1 Mn mh:ro c·ntcrpnsec> ~nd '>11M II - 276.67 
(() Oth~r 1,.01 rt·nt l!.lhllth-.~ ~ 61.10 101.71 
(d) Slwrt ~tl .. rm pnl\ bi\)n:ot 6 63.87 20.76 

Total 3,%5.00 4,235.31 

11. ,\ 0\.!'-CI., 

(1) 1\on-curronl .--ots 

(1)(•) l'rop•'>l\ 1'1-.•t /.;. lqui4"'''"t .tnd intdn):ihl,• '""''' 
i) I'II)J><'rl\ l'l<lnl k Fqui<Jill<'llt IW 0.15 0.15 

(ii) lnldn~.ihil' "''"'''' .lliJ 849.06 894.66 

iii) Gtpit.tl \\ork-lll·Jif<'l''e" lli.l 660.03 660.03 
(i\) Jnt,tngil•le dS5<"15 Untit• r de\ t•IOJ'fiWnt ZLaJ 1,389.33 1,386.56 

(2) Current as>ct> 
{~) <.:u rrt:'nt itWl'Sinwntc;, 
(b) lnveniOil<" 388.79 308.45 
c) Trttdt• rt'i.<'"h'tlhlt.)~ 8 669.64 959.62 

(d) C,uiih tuh.l t\l~h t>\lUh ttlt'nh 2 0.68 2.35 
(t1 Other '-urr,'nt ,t\~d ... J.O 7.3 1 23.50 

l nto1l 3,965.00 4,235.31 

SumnMry ofSignific.ull Arrountinr. Policies 
Tltt•rtrcoml•"'!lillg uoh·s form lllt llllcgmlflflrl ofllu'Si."fi111111Cilll Sllll<'lltt'u/s 0.00 
As J't.'r our Rt'IJOrl nftn•u d11te llllflclwtl. For ORIENT mADEL 

~ 
1' 

FORSATIS II KUMA!( GADDI I "'"1 ""'" ,, ,~,, ''"'=''" ,, Otortere d Accountants 
+-..,_'. J,, ,yr.,, 

~~· f~ . O·····~a\/l~ c ~ .. -,....,)'\~ 
t\'!S!!!,hcrshiJl No. 009641 

;,-, . . . )''~ 
~~ 

~- , . , c.,\ 
t. I ,( . •' '· ·r j DIREc. ~ r.:. fj_, ·- I 

-,..._ ~:-: az1 /~r A ~Kh'""'' ""'" "'""" """ CA Sil t ish Kumar Gaddh ., .I .,~I Mono~:ing irector and Cl 0 D irector 
Prupriclor ~·'~ Dl• - 00060319 DIN - 07892196 

~--
L 

Date: JIVOS/2022 A k a h oshn iwal 
PlacC': New Delhi Company Secretory 
UOIN: 22009641M ISONV3839 
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Orient Tradelink Ltd. 

. CIN • L65910GJI994PLC022833 
801- A, Mahalaya Building ,Behind Fairdeal House,Off: C. G. Road , Swastik Cross Roads, 

1avrangpura, Ahmedabad GJ 380009 I 

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ending 31st March 2022 
-

(Amouut iu Lnkhs) 

Particulars Note No. As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03f20n 

1 2 3 4 

l. l{evenue from operations 11 1,133.89 986.07 
II. Other income 12 119.61 85.81 
Ill. Tot,, I Income (I+ II) 1,253.52 1,071.88 

IV. Expenses: 
Cost of m.lteri,\ls con~umcd 
Purchases of Stod.-in-1 rade 1,0-17.98 681.23 
Changes in inventories offimshcd goods, work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade 13 (80.3-1) (93.62 

- -
Employee benefi~ expense ).4 31.01 52.39 
Finance costs - -
Depreciation and amortisation expense 7Lal 9<1.38 94.47 
Other expenses 15 43.53 226.51 
Total expenses 1,139.55 960.97 

V. Profit before exceptional and e~traordin.uy items and tax (Ill - IV) 113.97 110.91 
VI. Exceptional items 
VII. Profit before extraordi na ry items and tax (V- V I) 113.97 110.91 
Vlll. Extraordinary items 
IX. Profit before tax (Vll- Vlll) 1'13.97 110.91 
X. Tax expense: 55.3-1 
a) Current Tax 38.56 20.76 
b) Deferred Tax 16.78 18.30 
XI. Profit (Loss) for the period from continu ing operations (Vli-Vlll) 58.63 71.85 
XII. Prolit/(lo~>) from discontinuing oper.ltions 
Xlll..Tax expense of di>continuing operations 
XIV. Profit/(loss) from Discontinuing operations (after tax) (Xll-Xlll) - -
XV. Profit (Loss) for the period (XI +XIV) 58.63 71.85 

EMnings per equity share: 
(1) l3asic J6 0.11 0.13 
(2) Diluted 17 0.11 0.13 

The aCC<>IIIJ>anymg ""''''form an ntlcgrall'arl of the><! finnncinl statements I For ORIENT iRADELI~ As rer c>ur l~eJ>c>rt of <7>rll date attached. " --=--
FOR SATISH KUMAR CADD "'/-U~ . For and on Behalf of Board of Directors of 
Chartered Accountants r; ":\ M/s Orient Trade! ink Limited 

" 0' Mcm~j No. 009641 ( ~~ fo{£ o\ 

~·1111:,1,", ~::::::~~ uj ' ''· ·r't 
. \..~.{~~ ~l 096't\l} 

~ C~at'i:hi<u mar Gadd h 
~~-, /.·'? ' . .I.e;.,"""--- ··~· / Ianaging D rector and CFO Director ~ .'·4':.1 '·':, _: .. 'l 

Proprietor ~ DIN - 00060319 DIN- 07892196 

~ 
Date: 30/05/2022 Akash Toshniwal 
UDIN: 22009641AMSDNV3839 Company Scuetary 
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Orient Tradelink ltd. 

CIN- l65910GJ1994PLC022833 
801 - A, Mahalaya Building ,Behind Fairdeal House,Off: C. G. Road, Swastik Cross Roads, 

Navrangpura, Ahmedabad GJ 380009 IN 

Balance Sheet as at 31st March o 2022 

Statement of Ca sh Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022 

Particu lar 31-03-2022 
Cash flows from operat ing activities 

Profit before taxat1on 

Adjustments for: 
Depreciation 
Interest Income 

Interest Expense 

Reserves & Surplus 
Working capital changes: 
(Increase) I Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables 

(Increase) I Decrease in Inventories 
(Increase) I Decrease in Short Term loans & Advances 
(Increase) I Decrease in Other Current Assets 

(Increase) I Decrease in Other Financial Assets 

Increase I (Decrease) in Trade Payables 
Increase I (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilites 
Increase I (Decrease) in Long Term Borrowings 

Increase I (Decrease) in Short Term Provisions 

Cash generated from opera tions 

Income taxes paid 

Net cash from operating activities 

cash flows from investing activities 
Purch;~se of property, plant and equipment 
Proceeds from sale of equipment 

Acquisition of portfolio investments 
Investment income 

Interest Income 

Net cosh used in investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceeds from issue of share capital 
Receipt/(Payment} of Long term Borrowings 
Income taxes paid (Last Year) 

Increase in Security premium 
Interest Expense 
Net cash used in financing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equiva lents 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 

113.97 

94.38 

289.98 

(80.34) 

16.20 

(365.55) 
(40.61) 

28.02 

28.02 

(50.77) 
0.22 

(50.55) 

20.86 

20.86 

(1.66) 

2.35 

(Amolmt iu Rs.) 

31-03-2021 

110.91 

94.47 

(206 95} 

(93.62) 

(7.73) 

(1.21) 

106 65 

9.31 

12 

12 

(50 00} 

(50) 

40.0 1 

(2.73) 

37 

(0.89) 

3.23 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of p~~ ,, ~ 0.68 2.35 

1};'1'/;_o\1/i"') ~' 
r )' )~ For and on Beh;~lf ol ""I ' . 0 (.." FOR SATISH KUMAR GADDH ( ,,, · . > 9.\ Mls Orient Tradelink Limited 

Chartered Accountants \ ....... ~~ t I 1: JiFfFor reNT l OELINK l 
Membership No. 009641 \; • ' ' ~~ 'l 1/11, \ . I 
~ t. '-.: ::~ -:·_ ' __ :/ ~~~~ 

CA Salish Kumar Gadd~ ....._~_....... t 
Proprietor Aushim Khe apal MahesrO!J~ r errf.a 

Managing Direct r and ' Director 

Date: 30/05/2022 DIN - 00060319 DIN - 07892196 
UDIN: 22009641AMSDNV3839 

Ak~ 
Company Secretary 
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Orient Trade link Ltd. 

CIN - L6591QGJ1994PLC022833 
801 - A , Mahalayo Building ,Beh ind Fairdeal House,Off: C. C. Road , Swastik Cross Roads, 

Navrangpura, Ahmedabad CJ 380009 IN 

Notes to the Accounts for the Year Ended 31st March' 2022 

Corporate Information 

TI1e Compaow was incorpor.lled i11 Ahmedabad under the provisions of Companies Act 1956. TI1e Company is majorly engaged m the business of sale of 

spiritu.11 books. 

A. Accounting Policies and Basis of Preperation 

nu~se fillcllldcll Slcllemcnts tlrC prcpcltCd in C\Ccord,mce with Indicll\ Generctlly Accepted Account inn Principles (GAAP) under the historiccll cost convention 
o n the tKCnlcll b.lsis. GAAP compriS<$ lllcUldc\lOry clCCOlmting Slcmdetrds tlS prescribed by the Compel nips (Accounting Stclndards) Rules, 2006, the 
provisiOI\!J of the Compcmics Act, 2013. Accounting policies hc\\'C been consistently .1pplicd except where a newly issued accounting standard is 
initi.11lr adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires,, change in U1e accowlling policy hitherto in use. 

B. USE OF ESTIMATES 

Tiw pn•t·Mr,ttion of the finttnci,t l st.tlements m conformity with GAAP requires managem('lnt to make estinMtes and assumptions thct.t aUect tJte reported 
tMldnrc-s of assets dnd Jiitbilitics ttnd disdosurcs rcl,tting to contingcnt lictbilitics .ts at the d,tte of the Ci.n,utcidl Sldtcments and re ported .tmowtts of 
inconw and Pxpenses durinp, the period. Although these eslinMtes are based on management's best knowledge of current events and actions, UllCertainty 
,lboutthPse assumpli011S .md estimates could result in the outcomes reqmring a material .1djustment to the carrying an>ollllts of assets or liabilities in 
future period. 

C. PROPEilTY, PLANT, AND EQUIPMENT 

Propertv. Plcmt, ctnd Eqmpmcnt Me stc1led ,,, cost ne t of re<"overable t.txes and includes amou_nts added on revrtlutltion, less accumulated depreci.ttion and 

impairment loss, if any. All costs, including fiJ>,mcing costs till commencement of commercial production, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and 

,u,,tjust ments ·•rising from exchitnge rate vdridtions clllributdble to the fixed assets cue capilc:llized. 

D. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

lnt,lnl:ihle Assets are SlollCd oi l (OSt of acquisition net of recover.1ble t.oxes less accumulated .unortiz.otion I depletion. All costs, including financing costs till 
romm~ncement of commercial production, net chMJl<'S on foreign exch.mge contracts and adjustments arisinr, from exchange rate v.uiations 
~tttrilJUI<tble to the intttngible tts~ets rlre Cdpit,tlil.ed. 

E. DEPRECIATtO 

I Depn'l.lllhon on fixt~i dSSets 15 provRlei.:t to the extent of depreci,tble dmount on written d own vc1lue method (\VOV) dt the rdtes and in the manner 
presnil.JNI m Schedule lito the Co. Act, 2013 over their useful life. 
ii. Pr~miuon onle.1sehold l,md IS olmortized over the penod of lease. 
iii. lnt.mg1ble Assets .ue .1mortized on .o str.1ip,htline b.osis over the estin~o~ted useful Economic Life. 

F. LEASES 

(i) Operating Lease Payments are recognized as olll expense in the St.lleoncnt of Profit & Loss on ,1 s traighl line bo~sis O\'N the le.ose lenn. (ii) Assets under 

Fin.md.ll Lease .ore c.1pit.1lizetl at the inception of the le,1se tenn at the lower of fair value oft he le.1sed property and present value of minimum lease 
po~ymcnts. (iii) Asset r,iven under opero~tin!: Leol~e> .ore induded under Fixed Assets. Lease income on these .1ssets is recognized in the st,ltement of Profit & 
Loss on c1 str~tight line basis ov~r the lcctse ll'rm. 

C. DOIIROWLNC COST 

Borrowin!: costs that are .ottribut.lble to the aC']IIISition or C011Slnoction of qudlifying assets .ue c.1p1talized as part of the cost of sud1 assets. A qualifying 
,1ssct is one tlldt necessttnly lctkes subsl<tnti,tl p<•rioct o( tim.e to get re,u.ty for its intended usc. All other borrowing costs ,ue ch,trgOO to Stcllement of Profit 
,md Loss. 

II. IMI'AIIlMENT O F ASSETS 

An ltsst•t is tn?ctted dS unpclired when the l"<trrving rost of asset cxc£"t'dS its recoverctble vdlue. An l lllJldlfltu.'nt loss 1S clMrgcd to the St,ttement of Profit cllld 
Lo~s in lhl,. H'•tt in whkh .m ,\SS('I is identii'iL'd ,ts imp.tired. The imp.urm(.'nl loss recogmz~d in prior .tecountinr, l'l4..•riod is reversed if there has been a 
dtctnp,r ut the csti.Jndtc ot recover,tl>le tUnount. 

t. COVER MENT GRANT & SUBSIDIES 

Cr.1nts & Subsidies from the Government .ue recognized when there is re.ISOII<Ible assur.mce tholl the Comp.my \\•ill comply with the conditions 
,,tl ,tched to them ,md the grflnl I suhsidy will be received. Government Grants rcl.ttcd to dcpreci.tblc clSScts are trecttcd as deferred income and 
rCCO!',nized in the Stdlement of Profit & Loss in equo1l .1mounts over the expcctetl useful life of the rel,1tcd assets. Government Grants related lo 
re"enue are recognized on system.> tic b.1sis in st,llement of Profit & Loss over the period necessary to nMtch them with the related costs which they are 
inten<ll'<lto compensate. 

J. l VESTMENTS 

InvC'~tnwnts, which ,ue rf.'ddily nMlizable and intended to be held for not more than one ye,u from the date on which such investments dre made, are 
cJ,tssiJit•tl ,,:, nurent investments. All other investments are cldSSified ,,s long-term investments. All investments are usually mettsured at cost. 
Current investments .ore carried in the fill.mci.ll Sldlements at lower of the cost and fair value determil1ed in on an il>dividual investment basis. Long term 
investments ,ue cdrried ttl cost. Ilowevcr, provision for c.liminution in v,tlue is m,lde to recognize,\ decline o ther liMn te mpordry in the vd.lue of the 
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K. I VENTORIES 

Rrl\V ~l,Heri,ti.Stores, \Vork in Progress clnd Finish~i goods cue Vcllu~t ctt lower of Cost dllc.l net reclliZ..lble \'dlue 

on FIFO B.tsis. 

L. REVENUE RECOGN ITIO• 

Rcvonue •s r<'<:ognizod only when it c<~n be relic1bly measured and it is reasonclble to cxpect u ltunclle collection. Dh•idcnd income is recognized when right 
to rl"Ccive i~ f'~lclhlished. In terest incomC' ts recognized. on tlme proportion bdsis taking Ul lo account the .unotmt outst.mding and rctte applicable. 

1\1. h COME TAXES 

T dX r•xpenst.'~ romprtsC' rurrent cllld dC'Il'fftlti lrlX. Current tdx compr ises Comp,my's lctx li,tbility for the turrf.:'n t fillcUKi.ll )'C'dr dS well as additiolldl tax paid, 

if ell\\', dunn~~ the ye,tr in respcrt of ~drlicr ye,ns on receipt of d emtlnd from the rluthorities. For compulcll ion of taxable income under the Income Tax Act, 
1961, "'-cru,•l h•sis of <~e<ow•ling l1.1s been ,,dopl('(.1 and consis ten tly followed by the Compcmy. Deferred tax assets and li,lbilit ies a re computed on the basis 

ot limmg dtfiNences rtl the Balcmce Sheet dale using the lax r• le .tmlldX laws thai h.t,·e been en,lcled o r subst.mli,lll}' enacted by the Balance Sheet date. 
Deff•rrcd lclX dSSClS clrC rCCO!~nized b,lSCd Oil J\\clnc\ge>menl estimates or reclSOJMble ccrlcli.n ty I hell sufficient lclXclble izlCOJlle wil l be itvdildble rtgcti.nst which 
surh defrrred ldx dSSets Cclll l>e rt."dlizetl. UnrecORnizfld dC'(erred ldx dSSets of et~ rlier years cue rc-ctssessC'lt ,md recognized to the extent thtlt it has become 
rcc1S011c1bly lCrt.1iJ1 111<11 fu ture lclxable income will be ,1\'dilrtble agdulSI which such deferred lax assets c•n be realized. 

N. I' R0\11S t0NS & CONTING ENT LIABILITIES 

The Compc111)' recognized,, p rovision when there is,, present oblip,•tion dS d result of past event, ,,nd ,, rciMble eslinMie Ccln be made of the a mount of the 

oblig,llion. Provisi0115 Me determined l><~sed on I he best esthtl<lle required to sellle the oblig•lion ,11 1he reportu1g delle. These estimates are revie wed a t 

e.•ch reporting ddle and adjustt'<llo re0l'<:l the current best estimates. TI1e 1i,1bilities or obligations, which c.umol be crys1allized but loom in horizon, are 
disc:lo&ed ttS c:onti.ngent l t.l bili tit~. 

0. FORE1G C URRENCY TRANSACTION 

TrcmScll'tions d cnomitttt lcd in forrign currencies are recorded at the exchange rctle prev,tili.Jtg on the d,\te of the tr,ul.SdCtion or tiMt 
ttpprnximdl('S the .:tt·tu ,tl r,t te ell the d.t t~ Of the tr,\llSctCtion. 

ii. ~lonfll•ll)' items denomi1Mtrd m foreign currencies dt the yettr end dre restdted at yedr end rc1tes. In c,tse of tlcms which dre covered by forward 
exchrtnge contr,\Cts, the d ifren•Ju-e bctwel'll the ycM end r,ttc cmd r,ttc on the delle of the cont r,td is r<"Cognized dS exciMnge difference an.._t U1e 
premium JMill on forwd rd contrctrts is recor,nizt•d over the Life or the contr,tct. 

iii t"on monelttr}' furetgn currenn· itt'n\S .ue c,trried at cost. 

h• Am· in< omc or expe11Se on account of exch,mge difference either on sell Ie men I o r on lr<lnsl,ll ion is recognized il1 the Statement of Profit & 
l..o5s e>.cepl ill Cdse of long term Ii,lbililies, where they relc11e to acquisit ion of fixed assets, in which CclSe they are adjusted to the carrying cost of s uch 

<lSSCIS. 

r. RETIREM ENT A ND Ei\IPLO YEE BENEFITS 

I. Shor1-1~nn employee ben~fi ls "'~ rc.:ognized clS an expense ,111he undiscou nled amount m the St,llcmcnl of Profit & Loss of the year in which the 
r(ll,tt{'ld servtce is rendered . 

II Post t>mplonnrnt ttnd o tlwr long lt•rm t•mplovce benefits ftre ret:O)~nized ,,s tlll cxpen5e Utthe Profit c~nd Loss cKcount for the year in w hich the 
l\mplon"C IMS renderf'tl services. rhe expe115e is n'l'ognized a t the present vc\luc of the amounts paydble determi.nt'd using ttctuaria l valua tion techniqu es. 
r\ttuo~ri,II y,ctulS ,md losses il1 respect of post emplovmenl .111d othe r long te rm benefits are ch.trged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Q. RESEARCH AND DEVELO PMENT 

l.:.xp<'n"tilurc on resectn:h p1Mse is recop,ni£ed c\S c\ll expense when it is incurred. Expenditure on develop ment phctse is recor,niz.ed as tlJl inlcUlgible asset i( it 
is li l.~lv to !:enerdle prolMl>le fu ture emnomk benefits. 

R. EA RN I G PER S HA RE 

B,1sk ,1nd di lu t ~d Cct rninp,s per shMl' ,ue computed by d ividin g the net pro fit a llril>ut,lble to equity sl1<1rchold ers for the yeclr, l>y the weighted 

,wer.1ge number of equitv sh.m•s oulsl,tndillg ,11 1hc end of the ye.u. ll1erc Me no diluted polenti•l equity sh.ues. 

f O R SA TIS II KUMAR GADDII 
Cha11ered Accountants 
,\ lembership No. 009641 

CJ\ S alish Kumar Gaddh 
Propri(!tor 

Date: J<VOS/2022 
UDIN: 22009641AMSDNV3839 

r orFo<?.~~~ri"trT~Q~l;'A~r 

Jij:j"'~ ~-:--Aushin~trapal MaQ~n1arlJenna 
anagin 11 ~i!;::r and Cl Director 

DI N - 000~9 DIN- 07892196 

~~ 
Akash Tos hn iwal 
Company Secretary 
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Orient Tradelink Ltd. 
CIN - L65910GJ1994PLC022833 

801- A , Mahalaya Building ,Behind Fairdeal House, Off: C. G. Road, Swastik Cross Roads, 
Navrangpura , Ahmedabad GJ 380009 IN 

ole No. 1 : Share Capital 
Part (a) 

Noles to Accounts (Forming part of Balance Sheet) 

Part iculars As at 31/03/2022 
Authorized Share Capital 
60,000,000 Equity Shares (Prev. Year 60,000,000) of Rs 2 Each 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital 
51825000 Equity Shares (Prev. YeM 5'1825000) of Rs 2 Each 

Total 

Part (b) 
Reconciliation of the Shares Outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year 

Equity Shares 
At the beginning of the year 
h~ued during the year 
Outstanding M the end of the yea r 

Pi!rt (c) 
Terms/Rights attached 
i Equity Shares 

Number 

1,200.00 

-
-

1,096.50 

1,096.50 

5·18.25 
-

548.25 

(Amou11t i11 Laklzs) 

As at 31/03/2021 

1,200.00 

-
-

1,0%.50 

1,096.50 

Amount 
548.25 

-
548.25 

Tlw Comp.my has only one class of Equ1ty shares having a par value of 2/-. Each holder of equity shcues is entitled to one vote 
per share. 
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining 
assets of the company, after distribution of all p referential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of 
equity shares held by the shareholders. 

l'..rl (d) 
Details of Shareholders holding more thanS'Yu Shares in the Company (Amou11t i11 Lakfzs) 

Name of the Shareholders As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021 
Fquity Shares Number of Equity Shares Number of Equity Shares 
t\ushim PMsotam Khetarpal 71.26 71.26 
Davindcr Singh Bedi 41.80 41.80 
Tejpal Singh 31.87 31.87 
[{,winder Kaur Bcdi 27.63 27.63 
PrcfcrC'ncc Shares 
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Note No 2 · Reserves and Suq~lus (A11101111t i11 Laklrs) 

Particulars As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021 

(•1) l;encra t l{cscrves 

Opening B<1lann• (146.42) (214.41) 
l'wfit ,md LO!>'> During tlw Period 58.63 71.85 
Tran~tl' r d uring tlw n'<~r 

Cl<,~in;, Balance (87.80) (142.57) 
allocatron!> and appropnatJOns such a!> (hVH1cmt, bonus shares and 
lo tal (87.80) (142.57) 

Note l\o. 3 : Long-Term Borrowings (Amouut i11 Lakhs) 

Particulars As at 31/ 03/ 2022 As at 31/03/2021 

(.1) I fl'lll Rela ted PartiL'S (As per Annexure - 5) 313.27 302.41 
(b) T,•rm loan!> - -

(c) fr(l lll banks - -
(d) fm n1 o ther parlll'S 10.00 -
lotal 323.27 302.41 

ote No.4 : Trade Payablcs (Amormt ;, Laklrs) 

Particulars As at 31/ 03/2022 As at 31/03/2021 

I o t.1l outstanding d ues of micro cnterpriscs .md s m.11l enterprises: 

(•1) the principal amount rcm,1ining unpaid to any supplier at th~ end of 
l .1ch <hTOII Ilting \' l -'<l f 2,..J.<15.-16 2,535.0-l 

I o tal outstanding dues of creditor!. other than micro enterprises and 
~mall l•nterpriscs - 276.67 

rota! 2,445.46 2,811.71 

Note No. 5 : Other current liabi lities (A11rormt i ll Laklrs) 

Particulars As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021 

I" DS P.wable 65.39 , 65.52 

CS P.1vable 0.07 , 0 .07 v 

·.11.1 1"\' r a,·ablc 31.00 6.96 

.. 1tion.d Securities Dl~posi torv Lld.(NSDL) - 1.79 

hHnb.l\" Stock Exch.1n)'l' - 11.93 
I Oth r p.ly.lb k,.. ("l'-'Cifv n,\Lurc) . (35.37) 15.44 

rota! 61.10 101.71 

'Jole l\o. 6: Short-term provisions (Amouut i11 Laklrs) 

Particul<us As at 31/ 03/2022 As at 31/03/2021 
.1) Pru,·i .. ion for Taxatiun 63.87 20 .76 

·) (.)t l •ro; (speli lv natun•) 
. ota l 63.87 20.76 
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Note No. S : Trade Receivables (A111D1111t iu Lnkl1s) 

Particulars As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021 

ta)l raCie l{cceJvabtes outstanCimg l or a pcn o<.l cxceeCimg 

six m onths from the date they are due for pay men t 
Secured, considered good 
Unsecured , considered good 2.25 952.87 
Doubtful less allowances for bad and doubtful debts - -

- -
{IJ)l ra<.lc KeceJvabtes outstana m g tor a pen oa not exceeamg - -
six months from the date they are due for payment - -

Secured, considered good - -
Un5ecured , cons idered good 667.39 6.75 
Doubtful less allowances for ba d and doubtful debts 

Tot,tl 669.64 959.62 

:--otc o. ) : C.tsh and Cash Equivalents (A111ouu t in Lnklls) 

Particulars As a t 31/03/2022 As at 31/ 03/ 2021 
(d) BalatH '5 with banks 0.19 1.45 
b) C lwqu •s, drafts on hand - -
c) c.~sh on hand 0.119 0.89 

(d) OthPt , (spt>ci fv mlture) 
Totj f 0.68 2.35 

'\;o le N o. 10: Other current assets (specify nature) (Amount in Lnklls) 

Particulars As at 31/ 03/2022 As at 31/ 03/2021 
IIJS Rccl'ivable F.Y. 2019-20 4.33 9.85 

rDS Rl'cl'ivable F.Y. 2020-21 1.87 2.25 v 
, I JS l{pn•ivable F.Y. 2021-22 0.96 -
come 'I ciX Refu nd F.Y. 2019-20 - 1.60 

~·<'<.: urity Deposites- Rental Security - 0.24 

Security Deposites- SEBI 0.15 v' 0.15 - 8.21 l"l'" t GSl -
utllcr Fin,mcia l Current Assets (Annexure - tl) - 1.21 

>S - -
, ot .JI 7.3 1 23.50 
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' 'nk No. 11: Revenue from Operations (A11101111t ill Lnkl1s) 

Particulars As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021 

,) le of products 1,128.80 593.07 

' ' of Stock - Religious goods - GST Exempted 4.09 240.29 
I•J le of services - -

ni ng Income - 124.89 
,bution Income - 25.07 
he r operating revenue~ 1.00 -
1ction Cost - 2.75 

1,133.89 986.07 . 
:\fo. 12: Other Income (A11101111t ill Lnkl1s) 

r Particulars As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021 
lerest Inco me (in case of c1 company other than a 
.vidend Income 
et gain/ loss on sale of investments 
,he r non-o perating income (net of expenses 
nistrative Cost - 7.50 
be Income 0.09 0.08 
Jursement of Expenses (Income) 26.79 69.24 
•n off Balances 92.67 8.93 

unt 0.09 0.06 
119.64 85.81 

o. 13 : Change in Inventories (Am ou11t i11 La kits) 

Particulars As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021 
ted Goods 
lory at Lhe beginning of the year 308.45 214.83 

dory a t the end of U1e yea r 388.79 308.45 
1se or Decrease in Inventory (80.34) (93.62) 

Tnventory at the beginni ng of the Year 308.45 214.83 
Inventory at the end of the Year 388.79 308.45 
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" 

I 
L 

'lo. 14 : Emp loyee Benefit Expenses 

Particulars 
tries and ""'ages 
nlr ibution lo provtdent and olher fu nds 
\ pense on I-.mploy0c Stock Optio n Scheme 
taff welfare e'<pcnscs 
lor's Remuneration 

'o. 15: Other J·.xpem.~!> 

Parlic ulars 
· Keeping 
L'<pense~ 

!'axes 
tci ly & Wa ter Ch Mges 
ning Expenses 
KY Exchange Expense~ 
r Charges 

·va nce E>.penses 
I:CC 

harges 
' romotion & Bu!>sim~~s P romolion P.>.penses 
,. T ravelli ng E>.. pe nses 

>ff BaJa nces 
.cry ChMgcs 

11slra li ve E>.pe nses 
,-;emen l Expenses 

1 xpenscs 

·t Charge 
l 'C'S 

\'e Expenses 
,1l Foods 
.a king C ha rges 
neou!> Ex pe n!>cs 
'<penses 

,., C harges 
>t>nses 

·', & Slaliotwry 
•!> mal fees 
- j t · Expenses 

1cnt Expenses 
·L· menl Expenses 

'1i p I~ccs 

ottg ExpcnSL''> 
ne Ex p('nses 

I 

. 16 : Basic Earnin g p e r Share 

Pa rticul ars 

(A111ouut iu Laklls) 

As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021 
11.12 29.00 

- -
- -

0.23 
22.89 23.15 
34.01 52.39 

(A11101111t iu Lnklls) 

As at 31/ 03/2022 As at 31/ 03/2021 
0.19 -

0.36 -
4.59 -
0.53 -
0.97 -
0.00 -
0.40 -

0.44 -
- 1.40 

0.35 0.28 
- 2.87 

1 .71 12.67 

- 93.85 
0.45 1.08 
- 114.36 

0.21 -
0.26 -
0.09 -
3.34 -
0.25 -
0.01 -
2.37 -
3.87 -
2.81 -
0.00 -
0.19 -
0.'!4 -

10.98 -
0.35 -
0.46 -
1.73 -
5.53 -
0.25 -
0.01 -

0.39 -
43.53 226.51 

(A111ouut in Lnklts) 

As at 31/03/2021 
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m~ per share has been computed as under: 
2an ings attr ibutable to equity s hareholders 58.63 71.85 

Weighted Average of outst,mding Equity Shares 

-[ 548.25 548.25 
ll-l';ic Earn ing per share 0.11 0.13 
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"' ~ c No. 17: Diluted Earning per Share (Amou11t in Lnklzs) 

r Particulars As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021 
I 

r-
ning per shc1re has been computed as under: 
=arnings att ributable to equity shareholders 58.63 71.85 

[ Weigh ted Average of ou lst.mding Equity Sha res 548.25 548.25 
) Di luted Earn ing per sha 1·c 0.11 0.13 

ightcd Average of Outstanding Equity Shares 

Particulars As at 31/ 03/2022 As at 31/03/2021 

1wning no. of sh<ncs 548.25 548.25 
ights 1.00 1.00 

l lotmcnt mode dming lhc year - -
ights - -

1 ted i\ vcragc 548.25 548.25 
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